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Mission Statement

AV Eap

Natural Beauty is dedicated to cultivate our staff, customers, students and franchisees
to appreciate our education, products and services, which are made by the love and
kindness of our founder, Dr. Tsai Yen-Pin, who made modern ladies beautiful, confident
and wealthy.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors
Dr. TSAl'Yen-Yu

(alias Dr. TSAI Yen-Pin) (Chairperson)
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta

(alias Mr. LEE Ming-Tah) (Vice Chairman)
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng

Non-executive Director
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu
(alias Dr. Spring Sh-Hsyu SU)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long
Mr. LU Chi-Chant
Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang
(alias Mr. SHIA Ben-Chang)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng
Ms. HO Siu Pik

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. HO Siu Pik (FCS, FCIS)

MEMBERS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long (Chairman)
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu
(alias Dr. Spring Sh-Hsyu SU)
Mr. LU Chi-Chant
Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang
(alias Mr. SHIA Ben-Chang)
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Corporate Information
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AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
35/F One Pacific Place

88 Queensway

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS
Bird & Bird

4/F, Three Pacific Place

1 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT
Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited

PO Box 1093, Boundary Hall

Cricket Square
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Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
Hong Kong Registrars Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor
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Hong Kong

LISTING INFORMATION

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 00157
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
1 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

Taiwan Cooperative Bank
No. 277, Section 3, Cheng Teh Road
Taipei

Taiwan

CTBC BANK Co,, Ltd.

8F, No. 168, Jingmao 2nd Road
Taipei

Taiwan

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.
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1465 Beijing Road (W)
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The PRC

China Minsheng Banking Corporation Limited
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1/F Gulf Building
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The PRC

WEBSITE
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Financial Highlights
B

Selected Financial Data HEEERE FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 FY2017
HKS'000 (except pershare data) ~ F87T (BREERS) —FT—=-F =ZZT—=F —ZT-MNF =—ZT-—H7F =T =B-tF
HHEE HHEE BHER BHEE PHEE MBEE

Revenue WA 483438 439421 505,761 506913 475225 399,579
Cost of sales HEKA 103,592 106,321 116981 109419 122,366 94,467
Gross profit EH 379,846 333,100 388780 304494 352,859 305,112
Operating profit Ryl 155,251 83,052 116,274 170392 196,217 146,738
Profit for the year RER M 119,108 58,459 71480 136,830 148,403 105,388
Dividends gl 45648 52,655 105,871 136,944 247660 12,117
Earning Per Share (EPS) - basic SRR —HAK $0.0600 500290 500360 500680 $0.0740 $0.0530
Dividend Per Share (DPS) SRR 50,0228 500263 $005288 500684 §0.1237 $0.0560
Return on Equity (ROE) BRAE R 159% 74% 9.2% 18.7% 2.7% 16.2%
Return on Assets (ROA) BELR 135% 6.0% 73% 154% 18.0% 13.5%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

""IE Al S AT

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Overview

Turnover of Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited (the “Company” or “Natural
Beauty”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) in 2017 decreased by
15.9% to HK$399.6 million compared with HK$475.2 million in 2016. The decline
was mainly due to a decrease of HK$76.0 million in product sales, such segment
contributed to 98.6% of the Group's total turnover.

Turnover in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") market decreased by 17.4%
from HK$386.4 million in 2016 to HK$319.2 million in 2017, while turnover in the
Taiwan market decreased by 9.8% to HK$77.2 million in 2017 compared with
HK$85.7 million in 2016.

Sales from other regions, including Hong Kong, Malaysia and Macau, decreased

5o % 120 R
R

BAEEMBEBRAR (KRR HIERA
%)) &ﬁﬁﬁ% Al (6T [AEE]) &8
== — 7N F #9475,200,00078 7T T Bk15. 9%1
— T —+ 4 #9399,600,000/8 7T ° BRI E

F A E & $H 5 B8R 076,000,000 7T
EARNEE RS ¥ EERI98.6% ©

7

E/<77 IZIB

hEARKLME ([FE)) M5 E¥ER
T — N F #9386,400,0008 70 T BK174% = = F
ftia’qz 9,200,000/ 7T A& G2 & %5
Bl =& — /X £985,700,0007 7T T~ Bko.8% 2
:%—tiﬁ‘qﬁ,zoo,ooo;‘%ﬁ °

Hinthla (f

®BEE - HRAEMRPT) 2

by 1.3% from HK$3.2 million in 2016 to HK$3.1 million in 2017. Contribution & %8 N #1.3% * 1 == — /<45 23,200,000 7T
from these regions remained at an insignificant level of just 0.8% of the Groups ~ ~EAZE —Z —+4F 23,100,000/ 7T © s E b [&
turnover. HAKELEXB FREREN  EHEAER
EERFRM0.8% °
The Group’s overall gross profit margin increased from 74.3% in 2016 to 764%in ~ ANEEH 7 BEEBREMNEZH T —<FH
2017 mainly due to the launch of a new high-profit-margin product in the fourth 74 3%I2E@ & —E—+FM764% * TERH AR
quarter of 2017. R FENFEHEEEERENNIE
Dupﬁﬁ ©
Turnover by activities REKREI D2 EEE 2017 2016 Changes
—EB—+F —TRF )]
HKs’000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET % TET % T %
Products B 393,872 98.6% 469,894 98.9% (76,022) (16.2%)
Services AR7E 5,707 1.4% 5331 1.1% 376 7.1%
Total #et 399,579  100.0% 475225 100.0% (75646)  (15.9%)
12 Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2017



FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Products

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and sales of a range of
products, including skin care, beauty and aroma-therapeutic products, health
supplements and make-up products under the “Natural Beauty” brand. Product
sales are the Group's key revenue source and primarily come from franchised
spas, self-owned spas and concessionary counters at department stores. Product
sales in 2017 amounted to HK$393.9 million, or 98.6% of the Group’s total
revenue, representing a decrease of HK$76.0 million or by 16.2% when compared
with product sales of HK$469.9 million in 2016. The decrease in product sales
was mainly driven by the decrease in such segment in the PRC market by 17.7%
to HK$316.1 million in 2017 compared with HK$383.9 million in 2016.

Services

Service income is derived from the self-owned spas’ services, training and other

services.

The Group provides skin treatment, beauty and spa services through its self-
owned spas. Currently the Group has two self-owned spas in China and three

self-owned spas in Taiwan.

The Group does not share any service income generated from spas run by
franchisees under its current franchise arrangements. In 2017, service income
increased by 7.1% to HK$5.7 million compared with HK$5.3 million in 2016.

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR DN

B TSEEE (&)
ER

REBEXZEUBAE] MEREREEES
Em XEAREHEM  BER®EMSm
EXAEHRER ERHERAREEXTENK
ARRE - BEZREMBKRKEF L BELK
EBRKERLEAERAER T —tF 2
E b $H 5 58 $£393,900,00078 7T (k15 A &
BULAE%) BT — NEZERBEERE
469,900,000/ T 3 4> 76,000,00078 7T 3% 16.29% ©
EMEERERSEZAR_E—LFZOHRN
R KBETISER = — /N F 2 383,900,000/ 7T
TB17.7%Z316,100,00078 JTTFTE °

R %5

R EIR B B B L& KERORE - 5B K
H A AR -

AEEFBEBELEKEPORHENEZE
B XBERKERS - BRI - AEEEFEA
MEREEME B EREKER LN G ERER =
KEBRKLEKRKERL o

RIBATINRLELHE - AEE TS MINER
RCERKER LS ZEMRBERE - R=ZF
—tF  RFREER =T —7NF 25,300,000
JCIENN7.1% 25,700,000 T °

Service income B 7% W 2 2017 2016 Changes
—E—t5F ZE—REF 2E)
HK$’000 HKS'000 HKS000

FET % FEIT % FEIT %
Training income 55l as 471 8.2% 401 7.5% 70 17.5%
Spa service income KBRS Wz 4,192 73.5% 4,756 89.2% (564)  (11.9%)
Others HAfth 1,044 18.3% 174 3.3% 870 500.0%
Total st 5707  100.0% 5,331 100.0% 376 7.1%
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) BB (#)
Turnover by R ith g 8 5 2017 2016 Changes
geographical region LR —E 5 —ZT—NE BE)
HK$’000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
FAETT FHT FET %
PRC P R A P
Products e 316,085 383,876 (67,791) (17.7%)
Services AR7S 3,143 2533 610 24.1%
PRC Total AR B R PE 4 5 319,228 386,409 (67,181) (17.4%)
Taiwan =y}
Products ES 74,668 82,857 (8,189) (9.9%)
Services BR7& 2,564 2798 (234) (84%)
Taiwan Total =) 1E 77,232 85,655 (8/423) (9.8%)
Others Hit
Products E 3,119 3,161 42) (13%)
Services AR5 - - - -
Others Total Hfbaast 3,119 3,161 42) (1.3%)
The PRC Market A B K BE T 35

The Group's turnover in the PRC market decreased by 17.4% in 2017 to HK$319.2
million compared with HK$386.4 million in 2016. The decrease was mainly due
to the decline in the sales of products. Gross margin on product sales increased
from 76.0% in 2016 to 80.0% in 2017, as a result of the launch of a new high-
profit-margin product in the fourth quarter of 2017.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
The Taiwan Market

The Group's turnover in the Taiwan market decreased by 9.8% from HKS$85.7
million in 2016 to HK$77.2 million in 2017, mainly due to the decline in the sales
of products. Gross profit margin on product sales decreased from 79.3% in 2016
to 77.6% in 2017, as a result of the decline in the sales of high-value and high-
profit-margin products during the period under review.

Other income and other gains

Other income and other gains decreased by 64.6% from HK$36.4 million in 2016
to HK$12.9 million in 2017, mainly due to a one-off compensation fee of HK$19.1
million received by a PRC subsidiary in 2016. Other income and other gains
mainly comprised interest income, rental income from investment and other
properties, and financial refunds of HK$4.3 million, HK$2.1 million and HK$4.2
million respectively.

Distribution and administrative expenses

Distribution and selling expenses as a percentage of the Group's turnover
increased to 25.3% in 2017 compared with 23.8% in 2016. However, the
distribution and selling expenses decreased by HK$12.2 million from HK$113.1
million in 2016 to HK$100.9 million in 2017. Advertising and promotion expenses
decreased to 3.4% of the Group’s total turnover in 2017 compared with 6.1% in
2016, and decreased by HKS$15.3 million from HK$28.8 million in 2016 to HK$13.5
million in 2017. Other key expenses include salaries of HK$41.6 million, travel
and entertainment expenses of HK$5.4 million, depreciation charges of HK$4.4
million as well as rentals of offices and sales counters of HK$16.7 million in 2017.

Total administrative expenses decreased by HK$11.9 million, or 16.3%, to HK$61.5
million in 2017 compared with HK$73.4 million in 2016. Administrative expenses
mainly comprised staff costs and retirement benefits of HK$18.0 million, legal
and professional fees of HK$8.5 million, depreciation charges of HK$7.9 million
and office and utilities expenses of HK$5.4 million.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Other expenses and other losses

Other expenses and other losses increased by HK$2.4 million, from HK$6.5
million in 2016 to HKS$8.9 million in 2017. Other expenses and other losses
mainly comprised exchange loss of HKS$3.7 million, provision for doubtful debts
of HK$3.5 million, and related expenses of rental properties of HKS1.5 million.

Profit before tax

Taking into account the decrease in gross profit and other income and other
gains, profit before tax decreased by 252% from HK$196.2 million in 2016 to
HK$146.7 million in 2017, and the pre-tax profit margin decreased to 36.7% in
2017 from 41.3% in 2016.

Taxation

Taxation expenses decreased by HK$6.4 million to HK$41.4 million in 2017
compared with HK$47.8 million in 2016. The effective tax rates of the Group in
2016 and 2017 were 24.4% and 28.2% respectively. The lower effective tax rate in

2016 was mainly due to the fact that the one-off compensation fee received by
a PRC subsidiary of HK$19.1 million in 2016 was exempted from tax.

Profit for the year

Profit for the year decreased by 29.0% from HK$148.4 million in 2016 to HK$105.4
million in 2017.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Liquidity and financial resources

Cash generated from operating activities in 2017 was HK$21.2 million (HK$128.0
million in 2016). As at 31 December 2017, the Group had bank balances and
cash of HK$288.9 million (HK$4286 million as at 31 December 201
external bank borrowing.

6) with no

In terms of gearing, as at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017, the

Group's gearing ratios were zero (defined as net debt divided by shareholders’

equity) as the Group was in a net cash position on both year-end dates. Current
ratios of the Group (defined as current assets divided by current liabilities) as
at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017 were 3.5 times and 4.3 times
respectively. As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities, other than those disclosed in its financial statements and the notes
thereto. With the cash and bank balances in hand, the Group's liquidity
position remains strong and it has sufficient financial resources to finance its

commitments and to meet its working capital requirements.

Treasury policies and exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates

Most of the Group's revenues are denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”) and New
Taiwan Dollars (“NTD") as its operations are mainly located in the PRC and
Taiwan. As at 31 December 2017, 79.0% (78.4% as at 31 December 2016) of the
Group's bank balances and cash was denominated in RMB, while 16.9% (17.0%
as at 31 December 2016) was denominated in NTD. The remaining 4.1% (4.6%
as at 31 December 2016) was denominated in US Dollars, Hong Kong Dollars
and Malaysian Ringgit. The Group continues to adopt a conservative approach
in its foreign exchange exposure management. The Group reviews its foreign
exchange risks periodically and uses derivative financial instruments to hedge
against such risks when necessary.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Distribution channels

o

7EERE

Franchisee Self Self
Store Number by REREES 2 owned owned Total  Entrusted owned Total
Ownership IS E Spa Spa Spa Counter Counter Counter Total
mEFHEE BELE KEBEPL ERLE  BERE Y
KEAL KB @t 5 5 @t @t
As at 31 December 2017 R-E—tF
+=A=+-H
PRC EiYN S 796 2 798 0 14 14 812
Taiwan =y 246 3 249 0 0 0 249
Others Hit 30 0 30 0 0 0 30
Total 5 1,072 5 1,077 0 14 14 1,091
Franchisee Self Self
Store Number by RHEEREESZ owned owned Total  Entrusted owned Total
Ownership EEEE Spa Spa Spa Counter Counter Counter Total
NEEEE BELE  KERL  ERALE  BERE ZiE
KERL  KERL st =i B st @t
As at 31 December 2016 RZE—R
+=A=+—-H
PRC B AR 786 1 787 0 13 13 800
Taiwan aiE 249 3 252 0 0 0 252
Others Hith 30 0 30 0 0 0 30
Total st 1,065 4 1069 0 13 13 1,082
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued) EERE ()
Distribution channels (Continued) DEHERE (8)
2017 2016 2017 2016
Average Average Average Average
SEEH store store sales per sales per
Average sales per store  F3J8HERE number* number* store store Changes
“E—tF ZT—RF ZEB-tF —ZT~F
[EERY EWTE SHES SRES
HE* 2B FHYHEEHE THHEESH b))
HKS HKS HKS
B BT BT %
PRC R A B 806.0 796.5 396,000 485,000 (89,000) (18.4%)
Taiwan =0 250.5 2505 308,000 342,000 (34,000) (9.9%)
Group total** Emast 1,056.5 10470 375,000 451,000 (76,000) (16.9%)

Average store number is calculated by (opening period total + closing period
total)/2

*%

Group total does not include turnover and store count in Hong Kong, Macau and
Malaysia.

The Group derives its income principally from its network of distribution
channels, including spas and concessionary counters in department stores. As
at 31 December 2017, there were 1,077 spas and 14 concessionary counters.
Among these, 1,072 were franchised spas, and 5 spas and 14 concessionary
counters were directly operated by the Group. No concessionary counters
were entrusted to third-party operators. Franchised spas are owned by the
franchisees who are responsible for the capital investment in these spas. They
are obliged to use only Natural Beauty or “NB” products in their spas. A wide array
of services including hydrotherapy, facial treatment, body care and skin care
analysis are provided in all spas, while skin care analysis is widely available at the
concessionary counters in department stores.

Group-wide, a total of 82 new stores were opened and 73 stores were closed
during 2017. Average sales per store decreased from HK$451,000 in 2016 to
HK$375,000 in 2017.

* T EHE R A (B4t + BRAE) .2
itH

= EEBFTEERER  BRFERSRASTZ
BEENREHBE -

AEBRGEEREEKERLEBEEARR
BEDHRERE - R _T—tF+-_A=+
— B NEBEHEAG1,0778KED L R14E=
& B aiEo72EmEKER L - LR H
7N £ B B B AR A S R KB A O R AR EAE o
REBUVESZTE - HCEECEEE - N8
KERLANEEER @ BREERERFKE
FLHEREE - BEZKERNMENFERE
AES INB] MBER - SKERLHREHES
RS - BIEKE  EPRFEEBULEE
EESWRS  mMEERAREREZIRENSE
EEDHT

NEEMmME  RZZ—+tF  AEEAEFAR
82EIFNIEH - BEARA/3M/EH - SEEFHZF
HIEEREHR T — /N F 24510008 TR 2
ZZ— % 2375000/8 7T ©
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Research and Development

The Group puts significant emphasis on research and development which allows
it to maintain its competitive edge to continuously improve the quality of its
existing products and develop new products. The Group has been collaborating
with overseas skin-care companies on technological development. The bio-
technology materials the Group uses for its NB products are imported from
Europe, Japan and Australia. The Group's research and development team
comprises a number of overseas consultants with experience and expertise in
cosmetics, medicine, pharmacy and bio-chemistry. NB products are constantly
enhanced and modified by the application of new ingredients developed by the
team. The Group draws on its collaboration of experts with different expertise
and experience, together with Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu's over 40 years of industry
experience and knowledge to continue to develop high-quality beauty and skin
care products. NB principally uses natural ingredients to manufacture products
and adopts special formulae to cater to the specific needs of women with
delicate skin. NB products accommodate the natural metabolism of skin with
long-lasting effects.

Natural Beauty has collaborated with a leading researcher in the field of human
genome and stem cell technology for the development of an anti-aging NB-1
product family and other products for spot removal, whitening, allergy-resistance
and slimming. The stem cell technology is patented in the United States to
protect the uniqueness of the NB-1 products.

Products

In 2017, the Group’s flagship NB-1 products accounted for more than 40% of
total product sales. Sales of the NB-1 products reached HKS$167.9 million in
2017. Through research and planning on the beauty market, the Group has
successfully launched a new series of the Dr. NB-1 target products, thereby
strengthening and consolidating the position of Natural Beauty in the area of
beauty and spa. The new products received good response from spa franchisees
and achieved strong sales. Once launched to the market, the new products
received enthusiastic response from the market, and customers were rushing to
purchase the new products. In the fourth quarter of 2017, sales of the Dr. NB-1
target products achieved HK$45.6 million, accounting for 11.4% of total product
sales.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Human Resources

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total of 538 employees, of whom
439 were based in the PRC, 97 in Taiwan and 2 in other countries and regions.
Total remuneration (excluding directors’ emoluments) in 2017 was HK$96.0
million (HK$104.6 million in 2016), including retirement benefit related costs of
HK$16.3 million (HK$15.1 million in 2016). Competitive remuneration packages
are maintained to attract, retain and motivate capable staff members and are
reviewed on a regular basis.

The Group maintains good relations with its employees and is committed to
their training and development. Professional training courses are offered to
beauticians employed by the Group and to spa franchisees on a regular basis.

Capital Expenditures

The Group's capital expenditure of HK$32.3 million in 2017 was mainly related to
the new plant construction in the PRC amounting to HK$14.3 million, opening
of new store, renovation and equipment amounting to HK$9.8 million, office
and self-owned spa centre renovation amounting to HK$4.9 million, production
equipment amounting to HK$1.2 million and IT infrastructure amounting to
HKS$1.2 million.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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ADER

MN-ZE—+E+-A=+—8 A&£EALE
F538%EE « HA430F REF R ARE - 58
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OUTLOOK

We will continue to implement the following positive marketing strategies:

22

continue to speed up new store opening in tier 3 and tier 4 cities in the
PRC.

develop high-technology beauty apparatuses applied with high-quality
and leading-edge products and create efficient and effective technology-
based beauty skills and products, in order to improve the spa franchisees'
service skills.

continue to explore and expand new marketing channels and
opportunities for skin care products, such as combining the traditional
cosmetology with the preventive medical cosmetology and integrating
online and offline marketing resources with the aim to establish business
model of “Online To Offline”

cater to China’s Great Health Industry policies and continue to promote

high-end food supplements through diverse channels in order to increase

the revenue.
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Report on Corporate Governance

The Board hereby presents this Corporate Governance Report in the Group's
Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

The Company firmly believes that strong corporate governance is the foundation
to delivering the corporate objective of maximizing return to its stakeholders
over the long term. The core of the governance structure is an effective and
qualified Board of Directors (the "Board") which is committed to maintaining a
high standard of corporate governance, sound internal control and effective risk
management to enhance transparency, accountability, integrity and honesty, in
order to earn the confidence from our shareholders and other stakeholders and
to safeguard the interests of shareholders.

The Board had adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines (the "CG Guidelines")
(available on the Company's website: www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/

irwebsite) which gives guidance on how corporate governance principles are

applied to the Company.

The Board is of the view that throughout the year 2017, save as explained and
disclosed hereinbelow, the Company applied the principles and complied with
all the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the "CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the "Listing Rules") on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange"). The following summarizes the
Company's corporate governance practices and explains deviations, if any, from
the CG Code.

In addition to complying with applicable statutory requirements, we aim to
continually review and enhance our corporate governance practices in light of
local and international best practices.
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Report on Corporate Governance
EEERRE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS

AKABNEEERER @
A. EE

A1. Directors' Attendance and Training Records A1. é%tﬂﬁ&iﬁéﬂlﬁaﬁf’
The Board currently comprises seven members, consisting of ESeRB7EKEHEK  HFE
three Executive Directors, one Non-executive Director and three FE3RHITES  1RIFRITESA
Independent Non-executive Directors. The Board meets four times 3BBIIEITE % o E =EgEF
during a year as a minimum and, during 2017, it met four times. ELBRITNREH  RZT—+F
Details of composition of each of the Board Committees, the BITTHRSH - %Zi —tF
Directors' attendance records at the meetings of the Board and +=A —+—E|Lt¢f£|9q C ZEE
each of the Board Committees and the general meeting as well as EZEe s KEMAKRFE  BUE
the Directors' training records during the year ended 31 December EREFEEE  ZHEEZEE
2017 are as follows: FEMRRERE 2 HFELH - R
EZHJIRSNT
Remuneration Audit  Executive Nomination Annual
Committee  Committee  Committee ~ Committee ~ Board ~ General Training
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting  Meeting  Course
¥MZEE ENZEE YUTEEE REZEE EIg BRI
EE 83 EE g% &8 BEAE BB
Executive Directors HTES
Dr. TSAIYen-Yu BALET a /a 4/4 " 4/4 01 Notea
TER Silii fizta
Mr. LEE Ming Ta THELE n/a n/a 44 il 44 01 Notea
TEm TER fizta
Dr.SU Chien-Cheng GREt 0 n/a 4/4 n/a 44 171 Notea
ili TR fiia
Non-executive Director FHTES
Dr.SU Sh-Hsyu BEpEL 0 ”3 3/4 n/a 34 01 Notea
TR ifia
Independent Non-executive Directors BV EHTES
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long FRimE A 0 2”3 n/a " 34 01 Notea
Tam ifia
Mr. LU Chi-Chant ERERL 2 3B na /1 4/4 01 Notea
TEm Mitta
Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang ARERE ) 33 n/a 1 44 01 Notea
Tam Mista

24 Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2017



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

Al.

Directors’ Attendance and Training Records (Continued)

Those Directors who were not able to attend the Board and
Committee meetings in person could appoint another Director
as their respective proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf.
For indication purpose, attendance by proxy was not counted as
attendance by the Director himself/herself in the above summary.

Notes:

(@) Attended training course conducted by Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu that was organized by the Company and/or received
training materials provided by the Company.

The Company generally gives notice and draft agenda of regular
Board meetings at least 14 days in advance. Directors are consulted
to include any matter in the agenda for regular Board meetings.
For other Board and Committee meetings, notice is generally given
pursuant to the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”) and
the respective Charters of the Committees.

The agenda of Board meetings or Committee meetings and
the accompanying Board papers are sent to all Directors at least
three days before each Board meeting or Committee meeting
for their review and to keep the Directors apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company so as to
enable them to make informed decisions.

All Directors have access to the Chief Legal Counsel and the
Company Secretary who are responsible for ensuring that Board
procedures are complied with and advising the Board on corporate

governance and compliance matters.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

Al.

Directors’ Attendance and Training Records (Continued)

Draft minutes will be sent to Directors and Board Committees
members within a reasonable time (generally within 14 days)
after each meeting and are available for review and inspection by
Directors and Board Committee members.

The CG Guidelines allow Directors to take independent professional
advice at the Company’s expenses.

Instead of by way of circulation, full Board meetings will be held
for any material transaction with connected persons. Independent
Non-executive Directors who, and whose associates, have no
material interest in the transaction should be present at such

meeting.

The Company’s Articles provide for voting and quorum
requirements conforming with the requirements of the CG Code.

We have also arranged appropriate insurance cover on Directors'
and officers'liabilities in respect of legal actions against them arising

from corporate activities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A2.

Chairperson, Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu serves as the Chairperson, while Mr. LEE Ming-Ta
is the Vice Chairman. Mr. HSIAO Wen-Chung serves as the Chief
Executive Officer. The roles of the Chairperson and Chief Executive
Officer are separate. The Chairperson focuses on Group strategic
and Board issues while the Chief Executive Officer has the overall
responsibility for operations and development.

The Chairperson has a clear responsibility to provide the whole
Board with all information relevant to the discharge of the Board's
responsibilities.

Code provision A.2.7 stipulates that the chairman should at least
annually hold meetings with non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) without the executive
directors present. Since the Chairperson is also an Executive
Director of the Company, respective Independent Non-executive
Directors are members of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee and, the existing Non-
executive Director is also a member of the Executive Committee, it
was considered there were ample opportunities for the Chairperson
to communicate with the Non-executive Directors (including
Independent Non-executive Directors), therefore no separate
meetings were held between the Chairperson and the Non-
executive Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
DIRECTORS (Continued)

A.

28

A3.

Board composition

The list of all Directors is set out under “Corporate Information”
on page 2 of this Annual Report. Composition of the Board, by
category of Directors, including names of the Executive Directors,
Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive Directors
are disclosed in all corporate communications issued by the

Company from time to time pursuant to the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board, at all
times, met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive directors,
representing at least one-third of the Board (there are three
Independent Non-executive Directors out of seven Directors.)
with at least one Independent Non-executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related

financial management expertise.

Independence of Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of our Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. We consider
all Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A4,

Appointments, re-election and removal

Directors with service contracts or letters of appointment, including
Executive and Non-executive Directors, usually serve three-year
terms or one-year term, and are subject to re-election.

In accordance with Article 100 of the Articles, any new Director
appointed shall hold office only until the first general meeting of
the Company after his/her appointment and shall then be eligible
for re-election.

In addition, in accordance with Article 117 of the Articles, one-
third of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, then a number not less than one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general
meeting ("AGM"). Mr. LEE Ming-Ta, Dr. SU Chien-Cheng and Mr. LU
Chi-Chant will retire by rotation according to the Articles and all
of them, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM.

To further enhance accountability, any appointment of an
independent non-executive director who has served on the Board
for more than nine years will be subject to a separate resolution
to be approved by shareholders. We will state in the related
circular and notice of the AGM the reason why we consider the
independent non-executive director is still independent and our
recommendation to shareholders to vote in favour of the re-
election of such independent non-executive director. During the
year ended 31 December 2017, none of the existing Independent
Non-executive Directors has served on the Board for more than
nine years.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)
A4. Appointments, re-election and removal
Disclosure of Directors’ Information pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the

Listing Rules

Renewal of Director’s Service Contract
On 27 October 2017

(i)  the Board approved the renewal of the Director’s service
contracts of Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu, Mr. LEE Ming-Ta and Dr. SU
Chien-Cheng as Executive Directors, and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu
as Non-executive Director, for another term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2018;

(i) the Board approved the renewal of the letter of appointment
of Mr. LU Chi-Chant as Independent Non-executive Director,
for another term of one year commencing on 18 December
2017; and

(i) the Board approved the renewal of the letters of
appointment of Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long and Mr. HSIEH Pang-
Chang as Independent Non-executive Directors, for another
term of one year commencing on 1 February 2018.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)
A4.  Appointments, re-election and removal (Continued)

Disclosure of Directors’ Information pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the

Listing Rules (Continued)

Other Major Appointments

U]

(if)

Mr. LU Chi-Chant, an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company:

(@)  ceased to act as a Director of K Laser Technology Inc.
(stock code: 2461), a company listed on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange Corporation, on 26 May 2017;

(b)  was appointed as an Independent Director of Hannstar
Board Corp. (stock code: 5469), a company listed on
the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation, on 21 June
2017;

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long, an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company:

(@ was appointed as an Independent Director of Walsin
Lihwa Corporation (stock code: 1605), a company
listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation, on
26 May 2017; and

(b)  ceased to act as a Director of GINTECH ENERGY
CORPORATION (stock code: 3514), a company listed
on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation, on 30
October 2017.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)
A5.  Nomination Committee

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Nomination Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors and two
Executive Directors, namely Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang (Chairman), Mr.
CHEN Ruey-Long, Mr. LU Chi-Chant, Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu and Mr. LEE
Ming-Ta respectively.

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy aiming at setting
out the approach to achieve diversity on the Company’s board of
directors and having an appropriate proportion of directors who
have direct experience in our key markets, with different ethnic
background, of both genders, reflecting our business strategy. All
appointment will be based on merit.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for, including but not
limited to, determining the policy for the nomination of Directors,
reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board
annually and making recommendations to the Board on selection
of candidates for directorships pursuant to the Board Diversity
Policy. It also assesses the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors. Full terms of reference (Nomination Committee
Charter) are available on the Company’s website: www.ir-cloud.
com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A5.

Aé6.

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Company provided sufficient resources for the Nomination
Committee to perform its duties. Where necessary, the Nomination
Committee could seek independent professional advice at the
Company’s expenses, to perform its duties.

During the year 2017, the Nomination Committee met once to
conduct an annual review of the structure, size, composition and
diversity of the Board pursuant to the CG Guidelines and code
provision A.5.2 of the CG Code. The Nomination Committee
considered an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the
Board is maintained and no material matter was identified during

the year under review.

Responsibilities of Directors
On appointment, new Directors will be given comprehensive
orientation training by the Company’s legal advisers, to explain the

responsibilities and duties, and other regulatory requirements.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors

updated on the Listing Rules and other statutory requirements.

During the year 2017, all Independent Non-executive Directors
are members of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. The Non-executive Director is also a
member of the Executive Committee.

The attendance records of individual Directors for all Board and
Board Committee meetings in 2017 are set out under “Directors’
Attendance and Training Records” on page 24 of this Annual Report.

Report on Corporate Governance

TEERWE

= f‘

AATMEEEARER
A EBE(#®)

A5.

A6.

BAXEYREERAT

REZEE (B)
ARARRHEHERTREEER
g UBRELZEEEITHREEA
WERE  REZEGASRBY
BEXERUERTRA  BRAX
RAIXAT e

g% YERELEE
A ST RIST ARSI AL 216
HEEGZRE  RE - dARNE
TCEIT T FEEMN - RBREREE
RAREFERBBZEENZTIEF
& BEDBEFE N AREREM
EPNDI=

2
Fr
M
b R ¥
o

ESHE
MEZRRERBERRREERE
Rt 2 me ARSI - §EFHHA
BE  BSLREMEERE

AARERENZBEERALY
RAR AR R 2 BITAR -

RIT—EFERN - 2RBIIEHN
TEEHRERZES  FMZR
ERIERZBEKE - —RIFNTT
EXENR/PITREGNKE -

EREFLE-T—LFELEF
EERREFZAREHLLER
BN AERE1E [EFLRER
YRR 35 -

—ZT—tEFF®R 33



Report on Corporate Governance

s

CREARE

H..

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

Aé6.

Responsibilities of Directors (Continued)

Securities Transactions made by Directors and Relevant Employees

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry with all
Directors, all Directors have confirmed that the required standard
of the Model Code has been complied with throughout the year
ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this Annual Report.

The Company has adopted written guidelines (the “Company’s
Guidelines”), which are equally stringent as the Model Code, in
respect of securities transactions by relevant employees of the
Company who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside
information of the Company pursuant to code provision A6.4. No
incident of non-compliance with the Model Code or the Company’s
Guidelines by the Company’s relevant employees has been noted
after making reasonable enquiry.

Continuing Professional Development for Directors

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills in order to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. During the year ended 31
December 2017, the Company organized one Directors' training on
liabilities of directors and senior management of a listed company,
requirement on corporate governance and business ecosystem risk

management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

Aé6.

A7.

Responsibilities of Directors (Continued)

Continuing Professional Development for Directors (Continued)

There were compliance manuals provided to each of the Directors
and members of senior management, which set out (a) the principal
continuing obligations of the Company and the Directors as a result
of the listing of the securities of the Company on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange; and (b) the systems and procedures that the
Company, its Directors and senior management should follow in
order to ensure compliance with such obligations.

Supply of and access to information
The Company aims to continually improve on the quality and
timeliness of the dissemination of information to Directors.

Board papers were normally sent to all Directors at least three days
before the date of the Board/Board Committee meetings.

Senior management members are from time to time brought into
formal and informal contact with the Board at Board meetings and
other events.

Board papers and minutes are made available for inspection by the
Directors and Board Committee members.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
B. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
AND BOARD EVALUATION

B1.

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, one
Executive Director and one Non-executive Director, namely Mr. LU
Chi-Chant (Chairman), Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long, Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang,
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu respectively.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee include
determining the policy and structure for the remuneration of
Executive Directors, assessing performance of Executive Directors
and approving the terms of Executive Directors’ service contracts,
and determining or making recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s remuneration packages of individual Executive and
Non-executive Directors and senior management.

In conducting its work in relation to the remuneration of Directors
and senior management, the Remuneration Committee ensures
that no director or any of his/her associates was involved in
determining his or her own remuneration. It also ensures that
remuneration levels should be sufficient to attract and retain

directors to run the Company successfully.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are set
out in its terms of reference. Full terms of reference (Remuneration
Committee Charter) are available on the Company's website: www.
ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite and the Stock Exchange'’s

website.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
B. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
AND BOARD EVALUATION (Continued)

B2.

The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2017. During the year, the Remuneration
Committee has reviewed and approved the proposed bonus
awards for all employees and senior management, and the 2017
merit increase; and reviewed and recommended the renewal
of Directors’ service contracts of Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu, Mr. LEE Ming-
Ta and Dr. SU Chien-Cheng as Executive Directors, and Dr. SU Sh-
Hsyu as Non-Executive Director, and letters of appointment of Mr.
CHEN Ruey Long, Mr. LU Chi-Chant and Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang
as Independent Non-executive Directors. With reference to the
Remuneration Committee Charter, the Remuneration Committee
members had carefully reviewed and considered the contribution
of each of the Directors to the Group, the Directors’ experience
in the beauty and spa business and the market rate paid by

comparable companies.

Independent professional advice would be sought to supplement
internal resources where appropriate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

C1.

Financial reporting

Management provided explanation and information to the Board to
enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial
and other information put before the Board for approval.

Directors are provided with reports on the management’s strategic
plans, updates on lines of business, financial objectives, plans and
actions. The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records and preparing accounts for each financial period, which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of
the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing the accounts
for the year ended 31 December 2017, the Directors have:

approved the adoption of all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants;

selected and applied consistently appropriate accounting

policies;

made judgements and estimates that are prudent and

reasonable; and

prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
C.  ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

C1.

Financial reporting (Continued)

A statement by the auditors about their reporting responsibilities is
included in the Independent Auditor’s Report set out on pages 75
to 81.

Management provided all members of the Board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient details
to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts, and the financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

The Board will present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment to annual and interim reports, other announcements
in relation to inside information and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules, and report to regulators as well
as information required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory
requirements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
C.  ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Cc2.

Risk management and internal control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take
in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and establishing
and maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and

internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk
management procedures and guidelines with defined authority
for implementation by key business processes and office functions,
including project management, manufacturing and procurement,

financial reporting, human resources and information technology.

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems
have been developed with the following principles, features and
processes:

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems
are designed with the principles to enhance the operation
effectiveness, reduce loss in assets, ensure the reliability of financial
reports and ensure compliance with relevant legislation and
regulations.

The systems cover the factors including, among others,
environment control, risk assessment, activity control, information

and communication, and internal surveillance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
C.  ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Cc2.

Risk management and internal control (Continued)

The Company organizes personnel and seeks assistance from
external professional advisory institutions to establish the risk
management and internal control systems which are subject to the
review by the Company’s management team and approval by the
Audit Committee and the Board.

All departments conducted internal control assessment regularly to
identify risks that potentially impact the business of the Group and
various aspects including key operational and financial processes,
regulatory compliance and information security. Self-evaluation
has been conducted annually to confirm that control policies are
properly complied with by each department.

The management regularly reviews the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and compliance
with best practices. In coordination with department heads, the
management assesses the likelihood of risk occurrence, provides
treatment plans, and monitors the risk management progress, and
reports to the Audit Committee on all findings and the effectiveness
of the systems. The Chief Audit Consultant also reports to the Audit

Committee on the implementation of internal control.

The management has confirmed to the Board and the Audit
Committee on the effectiveness of the risk management and

internal control systems for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Internal Audit Department was established in early 2016
to enhance risk management and internal control systems in a
timely manner. The Internal Audit Department is responsible for
performing independent review of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems. The Internal
Audit Department examines key issues in relation to the accounting
practices and all material controls and provides the effectiveness of
its implementation and recommendations for improvement to the
Audit Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
C.  ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Cc2.

Risk management and internal control (Continued)

The Company has adopted a whistle-blowing policy to facilitate
its employees to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting control or other matters of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board conducted
reviews of the risk management and internal control systems and
considered that such systems of the Group had been implemented
effectively and adequately. The Board's review will also consider the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of the staff of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides
a general guide to the Company’s Directors, officers, senior
management and Relevant Employees in handling confidential
information, monitoring information disclosure and responding to

enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that
unauthorized access and use of inside information are strictly
prohibited.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
C.  ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

.

Audit Committee

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Audit Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors and one
Non-executive Director, namely Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long (Chairman),
Mr. LU Chi-Chant, Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu,
respectively. The majority of the Audit Committee members
are Independent Non-executive Directors, with Mr. LU Chi-
Chant possessing the appropriate professional qualifications and
accounting and related financial management expertise.

Draft minutes are sent to members of the Audit Committee within
14 days of each meeting. None of the Audit Committee members is
a partner of the external auditors of the Company.

The Audit Committee is authorized by the Board to investigate
any activity within its terms of reference; to seek any information
it requires from any employee and all employees are directed to
cooperate with any request made by the Audit Committee; to
obtain outside legal or other independent professional advice; and
to secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant experience and
expertise to their meetings if necessary. Sufficient resources are
provided to the Audit Committee to discharge its duty. The Audit
Committee has performed corporate governance functions set out
in code provision D.3.1 of the Code on Corporate Governance for
the year ended 31 December 2017

Full terms of reference (Audit Committee Charter) explaining
the Audit Committee’s role and authority are available on the
Company’s website: www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite

and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

C

44

.

C4.

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended
31 December 2017. During the year 2017, the Audit Committee
reviewed the annual results in respect of the year ended
31 December 2016 and interim results for the six months ended
30 June 2017 and significant issues on the financial reporting and
compliance procedures and arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties. During the year 2017,
the Audit Committee also met with the external auditors twice
to discuss audit issues, before recommending to the Board for
approval of publication of results.

There is an agreed procedure for Audit Committee members to
take independent professional advice at the Company's expenses.

There were no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Audit Committee did not have any different view from the
Board regarding the selection and re-appointment of external
auditors.

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board (which in
turn endorsed the view) that, subject to shareholders' approval
at the forthcoming AGM, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu be
reappointed as the external auditors for year 2018.

There was a whistle-blowing policy which forms part of the
employee’s handbook.

Auditor’s remuneration

During the year under review, the remuneration paid to the Group's
auditors, in respect of audit services amounted to HK$3,367,000 and
non-audit services amounted to HK$206,000 which were reviewed
and approved by the Audit Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
D. DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

D1.

D2.

Management functions
There is a defined schedule of matters reserved for full Board
decision, including:

- long-term objectives and strategies;

- extension of Group activities into new business areas;

- preliminary announcements of interim and annual results;

- material banking facilities;

- material acquisitions and disposals;

- material connected transactions; and

- annual internal controls assessment.

Board Committees

The Board has established four Board Committees (namely Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Executive Committee
and Nomination Committee) that undertake work on its behalf
with specific terms of reference setting out their roles and
functions available at the Company’s website: www.ir-cloud.com/
hongkong/00157/irwebsite.

Board Committees present their respective reports to the Board
after each meeting, which address their work and findings.

In addition to the Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee described above, details of the Executive
Committee are set out below.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
D. DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (Continued)

D2.

Board Committees (Continued)

Executive Committee

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Executive Committee
comprises three Executive Directors and one Non-executive
Director, namely Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (Chairman), Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, Dr. SU
Chien-Cheng and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu respectively.

Executive Committee is primarily responsible for formulating
business policies, making decisions on key business issues and
policies, facilitating the approval of certain corporate actions and
exercising the powers and authority delegated by the Board in
respect of matters arising between regularly scheduled Board
meetings, and to review financial, marketing, retail, operation and
other business performance, as well as to review and approve
annual budget and key performance indicators (‘KPIs") and track

performance.

The Executive Committee held four meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2017 and the attendance records are set out
under “Directors’ Attendance and Training Records” on page 24 of
this Annual Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
E. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

ET.

Effective communication

Separate resolutions are proposed at the meeting on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

Chairperson of the Board and Chairmen of the Board Committees or
their respective delegates are requested to attend the forthcoming
AGM.

The Company has held one AGM since the issuance of the last
annual report.

Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the board
of a listed issuer should attend the AGM. The chairman of the
board should also invite the chairmen of the audit, remuneration,
nomination and any other committees to attend. In their absence,
the chairman of the board should invite another member of the
committee or failing this, his duly appointed delegate, to attend.
These persons should be available to answer questions at the AGM.

Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, the Chairperson of the Board, Mr. CHEN Ruey-
Long, the Chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. LU Chi-Chant,
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, Mr. LEE Ming-Ta,
the Chairman of the Executive Committee and Mr. HSIEH Pang-
Chang, the Chairman of the Nomination Committee were unable
to attend the 2017 AGM due to other overseas commitments. The
Board had arranged for Dr. SU Chien-Cheng, an Executive Director
and a member of the Remuneration Committee and Executive
Committee of the Company, who is well versed in all business
activities and operations of the Group, to attend and chair the 2017
AGM on behalf of Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu and to respond to shareholders’
questions.

The Company has optimized the planning and procedures of
annual general meetings by, for example, giving adequate time
to all Directors to accommodate their work arrangements and
providing all necessary support for their presence and participation
at annual general meetings, such that the Chairperson of the
Board and all Directors will be able to attend future AGMs of the
Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
E. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)
E1.  Effective communication (Continued)
The Company arranged for the notice to shareholders for the 2017
AGM at least 20 clear business days before the meeting.

The procedure for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting can be found in Article 73 of the Articles of the Company,
which is available at the Company’s website (www.ir-cloud.com/
hongkong/00157/irwebsite) and the Stock Exchange’s website.

Documents relating to the Procedures for Nomination of Directors
by Shareholders and the Shareholder Communication Policy are
available for download from the Company’s website (www.ir-cloud.
com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite).

There is a dedicated section of “Shareholder Services” in the
Company’s website: www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite
to provide comprehensive information related to shareholders.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send their enquiries or requests to the following:

Address: 958 Changping Road, Jing'an District, Shanghai, China

Fax: +86 21 5256-0455
Email: ir@nblife.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
change to its Articles. An up-to-date version of the Company’s
Articles is also available on the Company’s website: www.ir-cloud.
com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
E. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

E2.

Voting by poll

Procedures for conducting a poll were set out in the notice of
the 2017 AGM. These procedures were also explained at the
commencement of the 2017 AGM.

A representative of the Company’s Share Registrar, Hong Kong
Registrars Limited, was appointed as scrutineer during the 2017
AGM.

Poll results were published on the same day following the 2017
AGM and posted on the website of the Stock Exchange and that of
the Company at www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite.

Investor relations

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for good investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group's business performance and strategies.
The Company also recognizes the importance of transparency and
timely disclosure of corporate information.

Additional shareholders’ services can be found in the investor
relations section of the Company’s website: www.ir-cloud.com/
hongkong/00157/irwebsite.

F. COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. HO Siu Pik of Tricor Services Limited, is an external service provider and

has been engaged by the Company as its Company Secretary. Her main

contact person at the Company is Ms. Jenny ZHU (Chief Legal Counsel).

Ms. HO has confirmed that she has undertaken no less than 15 hours of

relevant professional training during the year 2017.
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Directors’and Senior Management Profiles

EERBREREEE

CHAIRPERSON AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

DR. TSAI YEN-YU (ALIAS TSAI YEN-PIN)

Aged 70, founder and Chairperson of the Company, the wife of Mr. LEE Ming-
Ta (Vice Chairman and Executive Director) and mother of Dr. SU Chien-Cheng
(Executive Director) and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu (Non-executive Director), is an Executive
Director and member of both the Executive Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. She has also been a director of NATURAL BEAUTY
BIO-TECHNOLOGY (HONG KONG) COMPANY LIMITED since 16 May 2001. She is
currently also a director of some of our British Virgin Islands, Malaysia, PRC and
Taiwan subsidiaries. Dr. TSAl has been awarded numerous honours, positions and
prizes such as:

Honorary Doctor of Commerce, Dewey University, the U.S.A.
Fellowship of Asian Knowledge Management Association
Female Entrepreneur Award by Ernst & Young “Entrepreneur of the Year”

Taiwan's Top Ten Most Influential Female Entrepreneur awarded by
CommonWealth Magazine

Outstanding Entrepreneurs of Taiwan awarded by Taiwan Women's
Business Association

“Top 100 Chinese Entrepreneurs” of China

"Bai Yu Lan” Award by the Shanghai City Government

Principal consultant in the Chinese Ministry of Labor and the programme
“Ji Qing Chuang Ye"of CCTV

Principal consultant of cosmetology arbitration panel in the Chinese
Ministry of Law

st Pacemaker Award and Education Award of Beauty and Cosmetics
Industry in China

VICE CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. LEE MING-TA (ALIAS LEE MING-TAH)

Aged 70, is the Vice Chairman and an Executive Director of the Company. He is
the Chairman of the Executive Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee of the Company since 18 December 2015. Mr. LEE is the husband
of Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, whom is the Chairperson and an Executive Director of the
Company. He is also the father of Dr. SU Chien-Cheng (Executive Director) and
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu (Non-executive Director). Prior to joining the Group in 1993, Mr.
LEE had worked for various financial institutions at senior management level for
over 10 years in corporate management and staff training. Mr. LEE graduated in
Fengchia University in Taiwan with a bachelor degree in Banking and Insurance.
He has also been a director of NATURAL BEAUTY BIO-TECHNOLOGY (HONG
KONG) COMPANY LIMITED since 16 May 2001. He is currently also a director of
some of our British Virgin Islands, Malaysia, PRC and Taiwan subsidiaries.
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Directars’and Senior Management Profiles

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

DR. SU CHIEN-CHENG

Aged 46, the son of Dr. TSAIl Yen-Yu (Chairperson and Executive Director) and
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (Vice Chairman and Executive Director) and the elder brother
of Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu (Non-executive Director). Dr. SU Chien-Cheng was a Non-
executive Director and re-designated as Executive Director effective from 15
December 2011. He is involved in the financial management and strategic
management of the Group at Board level. He is also a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Executive Committee since 7 February 2013
and 18 December 2015, respectively. Dr. SU Chien-Cheng graduated from the
University of Westminster in UK with a master degree of business administration
and obtained his PhD in Business Administration in Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics. He joined the Group in 1999. He has been a director
of NATURAL BEAUTY BIO-TECHNOLOGY (HONG KONG) COMPANY LIMITED and
Natural Beauty China Holding Limited since 16 May 2001 and 11 July 2008,
respectively. He is currently also a director of some of our British Virgin Islands,
PRC and Taiwan subsidiaries.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

DR. SU SH-HSYU (ALIAS SPRING SH-HSYU SU)

Aged 44, is the daughter of Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu (Chairperson and Executive Director)
and Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (Vice Chairman and Executive Director) and the younger
sister of Dr. SU Chien-Cheng (Executive Director). Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu had been an
Executive Director since 21 September 2004 until she was redesignated as a
Non-executive Director on 24 November 2009. She was further redesignated
as an Executive Director on 15 December 2011 and was redesignated as
a Non-executive Director on 7 February 2013. She is also a member of the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Executive Committee of the
Company. Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu graduated from the London School of Economics
with a Master of Science degree in industrial relations and human resources
management and obtained her PhD in international and comparative education
from Columbia University in New York, United States. Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu had been
actively engaged in the marketing and business development of the Natural
Beauty Group in Taiwan and China during the period from 2004 to 2009. Dr. SU
Sh-Hsyu is involved in strategic management of the Group at Board level. Dr.
SU Sh-Hsyu has been a director of NATURAL BEAUTY BIO-TECHNOLOGY (HONG
KONG) COMPANY LIMITED and Natural Beauty China Holding Limited since 16
May 2001 and 11 July 2008, respectively. She is currently also a director of some
of our PRC and Taiwan subsidiaries.
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Directors’and Senior Management Profiles

ESENSREEERE
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. CHEN RUEY-LONG

Aged 69, obtained his Bachelor degree of Economics from National Chung-
Hsing University in 1970. He was the Minister of the Ministry of Economic
Affairs of Taiwan from 2006 to 2008. Prior to that, he held various positions and
represented the Ministry of Economic Affairs of Taiwan in various countries and
was based in Switzerland from 1987 to 1996 and in Belgium from 1974 to 1979.
Mr. CHEN was the Board Chairman of the Institute for Information Industry in
Taiwan from 2008 to 2009. Mr. CHEN is currently the Board Chairman of SINOCON
Industrial Standards Foundation in Taiwan, the Secretary-general of Cross-
Strait CEO Summit, a director of Bank of Panhsin in Taiwan and Teknowledge
Development Corporation in Taiwan, and the Board Chairman and Chief
Operating Officer of Powerchip Technology Corporation (stock code: 5346), listed
on the Taiwan GreTai Securities Market. He is also a director of HannStar Board
Corporation (stock code: 5469) and Asia Cement Corporation (stock code: 1102);
a managing director and independent director of Formosa Chemicals and Fibre
Corporation (stock code: 1326); an independent director of China Petrochemical
Development Corporation, Ltd. (stock code: 1314), INVENTEC CORPORATION
(stock code: 2356) and Walsin Lihwa Corporation (stock code: 1605), which are
listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange. From June 2011 until 10 June 2014, he was
an independent director of E-Ton Solar Tech. Co,, Ltd. (stock code: 3452), listed on
the Taiwan GreTai Securities Market. He was also a director of GINTECH ENERGY
CORPORATION (stock code: 3514), listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange, until 30
October 2017. He was appointed as the Company’s Independent Non-executive
Director on 1 February 2010. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of both the Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company.
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Directars’and Senior Management Profiles

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. LU CHI-CHANT

Aged 66, is currently an independent non-executive director of Eagle Nice
(International) Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 02368), and an independent director of Li Peng Enterprise
Co,, Ltd. (stock code: 1447), LEALEA ENTERPRISE CO, LTD (stock code: 1444) and
Hannstar Board Corp. (stock code: 5469), all listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange.
He is also an independent director of Nyquest Technology Co, Ltd, a company
listed on the Taiwan GreTai Securities Market (stock code: 6494). From June
2014 to May 2017, Mr. LU was an independent director of K Laser Technology
Inc. (stock code: 2461), a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange. From
2012 to 2013, Mr. LU was an independent director of First Sino Bank, a licensed
bank established in the People’s Republic of China. Mr. LU obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Mechanical Engineering from National Taiwan University in 1974 and
passed the professional qualification examinations in Taiwan for certified public
accountant in 1983 and for securities investment analyst in 1988. During the
period from 1976 to 1984, Mr. LU worked as a mechanical engineer in Formosa
Plastics Corporation, a company established in Taiwan which is principally
engaged in the manufacturing of plastic raw materials and products. Mr. LU
joined Deloitte & Touche Taiwan as an auditor in 1984 and he became a partner
there in 1986. Mr. LU left Deloitte & Touche Taiwan in 2011. He was appointed as
the Company’s Independent Non-executive Director on 18 December 2015. He
is also the Chairman of Remuneration Committee and a member of both the
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. HSIEH PANG-CHANG (ALIAS SHIA BEN-CHANG)

Aged 55, obtained his Ph.D degree in Biological Statistics from Department of
Agronomy of the National Taiwan University. He holds various positions in the Taipei
Medical University, including the dean of the College of Management, a director of
Big Data Research Center and a professor of Executive Master Program of Business
Administration in Biotechnology (EMBA) of the College of Management. He is also
the president of Chunghwa Market Research Society and the honorary president
of ChungHwa Data Mining Society. Mr. HSIEH is currently an independent director
of Sirtec International Co, Ltd. (stock code: 5356), a company listed on the Taiwan
GreTai Securities Market. He was a director of Waterland Financial Holding Co, Ltd.
(stock code: 2889) and International Bills Finance Corporation (stock code: 5840),
both listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange. He was also a director of Waterland
Securities Investment Consulting Co, Ltd. and CyberSoft Digital Services Corporation,
an Information Technology company established in Taiwan. During the period
from 1991 to 2015, Mr. HSIEH worked as an associate professor of Department of
Business Mathematics of Soochow University, a professor of The Institute of Biological
Statistics of National Taiwan University, the Chairman of Department of Statistics of
Fu Jen Catholic University, a director of Institute of Business Administration of Fu Jen
Catholic University and an editor of DIGITIMES Inc, respectively. He was appointed
as the Company’s Independent Non-executive Director on 1 February 2016. He is
also the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of both the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company.

GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER:

MR. HSIAO WEN-CHUNG (ALIAS MARK SHAW)

Aged 60, joined the Group on 16 October 2006 as the Chief Operating Officer
of Taiwan and other markets. He was subsequently re-designated as the
Chief Operating Officer of the Group with effect from 15 April 2009 and was
responsible for consolidating and expanding the Group’s operations until
9 February 2010. Mr. HSIAO was appointed as Chief Operating Officer and Interim
Chief Executive Officer of the Group with effect from 21 December 2015 and
1 January 2016 respectively and was subsequently re-designated as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Group and ceased to be the Chief Operating Officer
with effect from 1 September 2016. Mr. HSIAO graduated from the Department
of Journalism of Chinese Culture University in 1981. Prior to joining the Group
in October 2006, Mr. HSIAO has over 23 years of operational management
experience in the consumer goods industry. He was the National Key Account
Manager of Tait & Co, the National Sales Director of Unilever Taiwan, the Sales
and Marketing Director, Greater China of Warner-Lambert and Energizer Schick
Taiwan Limited, leading the sales team of the company operating globally in
the broad categories of household and personal care products. From November
2014 to November 2015, Mr. HSIAO was the Executive Vice President of Panion &
BF Biotech Inc, Taiwan (Stock Code: 1760).
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PRC OPERATION GENERAL MANAGER:

MS. SUN YA XIN

Aged 56, joined the Group on 16 October 2006 as Deputy General Manager of
Shanghai Natural Beauty Cosmetics Co, Ltd, General Manager of North China
Region and General Manager of Beijing Natural Beauty Cosmetics Co, Ltd.
until 30 March 2010. Ms. SUN was appointed as the general manager of PRC
operation on 1 August 2017. Ms. SUN received a bachelor's degree in Chinese
Literature in July 1982 and a master’s degree in Medical Dermatology in July
1986. Before joining the Group in October 2006, Ms. SUN served as the heads
of various national-level media agencies in PRC, such as the president of the
“Family Weekly Newspaper’, a subsidiary of the China Women's News and the
standing president and executive chief editor of “Health Person” magazine which
is led by the Minister of Health. She also served as the standing director of the
Chinese Medical Doctor Association of the Minister of Health and the Red Cross
Society of China. During the period when she served as the vice president of
the Beauty & Cosmetics Chamber under All-China Federation of Industry &
Commerce, she advised on the marketing and innovation strategies to a number
of internationally renowned PRC brands and organized numerous industry
alliance road shows and marketing events for franchising brands, achieving both
franchise expansion and sales performance. From April 2010 to July 2017, Ms.
SUN served as the managing director of Beijing Si Yan-li Medical Beauty Clinic
Co, Ltd.
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COMPANY SECRETARY:

MS. HO SIU PIK

Ms. HO, is a Director of Corporate Services of Tricor Services Limited (“Tricor”),
a global professional services provider specializing in integrated Business,
Corporate and Investor Services. Ms. HO has over 20 years of experience in
the corporate secretarial field. She has been providing professional corporate
services to Hong Kong listed companies as well as multinational, private and
offshore companies. As at the latest Practicable Date, Ms. HO is the company
secretary/joint company secretary of six listed companies on the Stock Exchange,
including the Company, Asia Cement (China) Holdings Corporation (stock code:
743), China Greenland Broad Greenstate Group Company Limited (stock code:
1253), China Molybdenum Co,, Ltd. (stock code: 3993), Goodbaby International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1086) and Summit Ascent Holdings Limited
(stock code:102). Ms. HO is a Chartered Secretary and a Fellow of both The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries (“HKICS”) and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom. She is a holder of the
Practitioner’s Endorsement from HKICS. (Note: The Company has engaged Tricor
as external service provider and appointed Ms. HO as the Company’s company

secretary since 11 December 2013.)
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The Directors have pleasure to present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is principally
engaged in (a) manufacturing and sales of a range of products including skin
care, beauty, aroma-therapeutic products and health supplements and make-up
products under the “Natural Beauty” brand and (b) provision of skin treatments,
beauty and spa services and skin care consulting and beauty training. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2017
(including an analysis of the Group's performance during the year using
key performance indicators and a discussion of the Group's future business
development) is set out in the Chairman’s Statement in the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report of the Company for the year 2017.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

As far as the Board of Directors and management are aware, the Group has
complied in all material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the business and operation of the Group. During the year
ended 31 December 2017, there was no material breach of, or non-compliance,

with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

Relationship with Employees

Competitive remuneration packages are maintained to attract, retain and
motivate capable staff members and are reviewed on a regular basis. The Group
maintains good relations with its employees and is committed to their training
and development. Professional training courses are offered to beauticians
employed by the Group and to franchisees on a regular basis.

Relationship with Suppliers, Customers and other Stakeholders

The Group understands the importance of maintaining good relationships with
its suppliers and customers to meet its immediate and long-term goals. During
the year ended 31 December 2017, there were no material and significant
disputes between the Group and its suppliers, customers and other stakeholders.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of the environment and
communities in which it operates. Acting in an environmentally responsible
manner, the Group endeavors to comply with the applicable environmental laws
and regulations and to adopt effective measures to ensure the efficient usage of
resources, energy conservation and waste reduction. Such initiatives include the
recycling of used papers, the adoption of energy saving measures. During the
year ended 31 December 2017, the Group had not been subject to any fines or
other penalties due to any non-compliance with health, safety or environmental
regulations.

For details of the Company’s environment policy and performance, please refer
to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company for the
year 2017.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 82.

An interim dividend of HK$0.0171 per share (2016: interim dividend of HK$0.041)
and a special interim dividend of HKS$0.0054 per share (2016: special interim
dividend of HK$0.025), amounting to approximately HK$34,236,000 and
HK$10,811,000 respectively, were paid to the shareholders during the year. At
the Board meeting held on 27 March 2018, the Directors recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK$0.0335 per share (2016: final dividend of
HK$0.0327 and special final dividend of HK$0.025) to the shareholders of the
Company whose names appear on the register of members on 6 June 2018,
amounting to approximately HK$67,070,381. The proposed final dividend is
subject to approval by the shareholders at the AGM of the Company to be
held on 24 May 2018. Details of the dividends are set out in note 13 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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CLOSURES OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed on the following dates:
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Thursday, 17 May 2018 to
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entitled to the final dividend

During and including the book closure periods described in the table above, no
transfer of shares will be effected.

In order to qualify for attending and voting at the 2018 AGM or to qualify for
the final dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Hong Kong Registrars Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on the final lodging dates mentioned in the table above.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the year, the aggregate sales and purchases attributable to the Group's
five largest customers and suppliers were less than 8% of the Group’s total

turnover and purchases for the year.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group's investment properties as at 31 December 2017 were fair valued by
an independent firm of professional property valuers. There was no change in
fair value of investment properties other than the exchange realignment.

Details of movements during the year in the investment properties of the Group
are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

To determine the identity of members who are entitled

To determine the identity of members who are
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to attend and vote at the 2018 Annual General Meeting
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results for the year and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group as at 31 December 2017 and for the previous four financial years are set
out on pages 167 and 168 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the publishing date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:

Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu (alias Dr. TSAI Yen-Pin)

Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (alias Mr. LEE Ming-Tah)

Dr. SU Chien-Cheng

Non-executive Director:

Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu (alias Dr. Spring Sh-Hsyu SU)
Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long

Mr. LU Chi-Chant
Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang (alias Mr. SHIA Ben-Chang)
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

In accordance with Article 100 of the Company’s Articles, any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall hold office only until the first general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and shall then be eligible for
re-election at that meeting.

In addition, in accordance with Article 117 of the Company’s Articles, one-third
of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then a number not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation
at each annual general meeting. Mr. LEE Ming-Ta, Dr. SU Chien-Cheng and Mr.
LU Chi-Chant shall retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Rules Governing (the “Listing Rules") on the Stock Exchange. The Company
considers all the Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

Directors are required to declare their direct or indirect interests, if any, in any
proposals or transactions to be considered by the Board at Board meetings and

withdraw if appropriate.

CHAIRPERSON, VICE CHAIRMAN AND BOARD
COMMITTEES

The Chairperson and Vice Chairman of the Board and the members of each
of the committees of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Chairperson and Vice Chairman

Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu (Chairperson of the Board)
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (Vice Chairman of the Board)
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CHAIRPERSON, VICE CHAIRMAN AND BOARD

COMMITTEES (Continued)

Members of Audit Committee:

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long (Chairman)
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu

Mr. LU Chi-Chant

Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang

Members of Remuneration Committee:

Mr. LU Chi-Chant (Chairman)
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng

Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long

Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang

Members of Executive Committee:

Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (Chairman)
Dr. TSAl'Yen-Yu

Dr. SU Chien-Cheng

Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu

Members of Nomination Committee:

Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang (Chairman)
Dr. TSAl'Yen-Yu

Mr. LEE Ming-Ta

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long

Mr. LU Chi-Chant
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CHAIRPERSON, VICE CHAIRMAN AND BOARD FF - BIEXEEREEZES )

COMMITTEES (Continued)

The compositions of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the ~ NR#FIBEARREEFE B - XRAFEZ
Executive Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company as well ZE® - HMEE S - TZ 82 RIEEEE

as the Chairperson and Vice Chairman of the Company as of date of this report

are set out below:

ZHRABARARREREMEIERE

Board Committees

EEeLEY
Audit  Remuneration Executive Nomination
Committee Committee Committee Committee
Board of Directors Exe BERLEY ¥iZzeg WITZRES R¥ZEE
Executive Directors HITES
Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu (Chairperson of the Board) BELHLT
C£3-E39) - - M M
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (Vice Chairman of the Board) THESLE
(BEFE2RER) - - C M
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng BEHET - M -
Non-executive Director FHTES
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu BapEtT M M M -
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long BRimfE £ & C - M
Mr. LU Chi-Chant BERELE M C - M
Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang AMBELE M M - C
Notes: B 5T
@ Chairman/Chairperson of the relevant Board committees C ﬁ%ﬁ%%@é%@ﬁ@i%
M Member of the relevant Board committees M EHZESFEZEENNE
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2017, in the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the
Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders were approximately
HK$1,260,000 which represents the share premium and retained profits of the

Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors'service contracts entered into between the Company and each of
Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu, Mr. LEE Ming-Ta, Dr. SU Chien-Cheng (Executive Directors) and Dr.
SU Sh-Hsyu (Non-executive Director) have been expired on 31 December 2017
and were renewed with the same terms for another three years from 1 January
2018 to 31 December 2020 with an initial annual remuneration of HK$1,000,000,
nominal HK$1, HK$1,250,000 and HK$ 1,250,000, respectively.

The letter of appointment entered into between the Company and Mr. LU
Chi-Chant, the Independent Non-executive Director, has been expired on
17 December 2017 and was renewed with the same terms for another one year
from 18 December 2017 to 17 December 2018.

The letters of appointment entered into between the Company and each of
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long and Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang, the Independent
Non-executive Directors, has been expired on 31 January 2018 and were
renewed with the same terms for another one year from 1 February 2018 to
31 January 2019.

These service contracts and letters of appointment may be terminated by either
party giving to the other party one to three calendar months' notice in writing.
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DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS (Continued)

The annual remuneration pursuant to such service contracts or letters of

appointment for the year ended 31 December 2017 are summarised as follows:

Directors'Report
EEEWES

= 'f-

BERKEEH @)

HE-T—

tFE+-A=+—BLFE R

IR E KR T RN 2 FHBAn T

Annual
Director fee

Annual increment

(HK dollars)  on Director fee Discretionary

Director type FEESNE E=HE bonus
Name of Director BEENA EE57 (Brm) FEIEE BB IEAL
Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu R R ED 1,000000  Note (a) FzE(@) Note (b) Fff5(b)
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta FHRELAE ED 1 Note (a) f7E(@) Note (b) Fff7E(b)
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng BHEEEL ED 1250000  Note (a) FizE(@) Note (b) KftzE(b)
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu RS E L NED 1,250,000  Note (a) FzE(@) Note (b) Fffz(b)
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long PRIl ST A INED 240000  N/ATNEA N/A N3
Mr. LU Chi-Chant EREERE INED 240000  N/A TNEA N/A T~
Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang FHBE LA INED 220000  N/A N@ES N/A “NiE
Total BET 4,220,001

ED: Executive Director

NED: Non-executive Director NED :

INED: Independent Non-executive Director INED

Notes: B 2E

() The annual increment of the Directors’ fee for Executive Director and (a)
Non-executive Director shall not exceed 10% of the annual fee of preceding year.

(b) Executive Directors and Non-executive Director may receive a bonus approved by (b)

and at the discretion of the Board from time to time. The bonus to all Executive
Directors and Non-executive Director shall not exceed 15% of the audited
consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company in respect of that
financial year of the Group.

ED: MfTES

FHTE=S
BN FHITES

HTESRIIDTES EF R EFIEE
BB E—F2FEHBE10% o

HITEE P MTESARREZETHE
BHAEZ L - i T 2RRMITEF RIFTT
BEEZ AT SBEBAEERZMBRFEZ
RRATEA NEIGRE RIS 15% °
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Continued)

No Director bonus was proposed nor paid for the years ended 31 December
2016 and 2017.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has any unexpired service contract or letter
of appointment which is not terminable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

Management Contracts

No contracts, other than the service contracts and letters of appointment
disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’ Service Contracts” above or
employment contracts, concerning the management and/or administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered
into or existed during the year 2017.

Permitted Indemnity

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles, every Director shall be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses and
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in the execution of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs associated
with defending any proceedings which may be brought against directors of the

Group.

Remuneration of Senior Management
The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band for the
year ended 31 December 2017 is set out below:

BEERBESHN @
REEZE—R"FER_FT—+tF+-A=+—
AIEFE @ AARWERERRN I NEME
BIELT ©

B EXIEEESN - AEEY EAEEF] A
AR —F AR HE (—BEEFERI)
FTURIEZ REMRB AR EE -

EEEAYN

RZE—LFERN BLEXTEZEREAL]
—BAWBENREE A REE RSN - NRBH
EAIDS NERRMIT AR B EBNEE ST
MEBILONEH  TEBBEAOFE

EEFNREE

REARFARORE - ARRBEEEREA
RESHARRREEETHEMEENITHE
BRE AR MR ERE KPR
BRA - BR - FAx - BERMRAEE-

ARRIERAKE 2 EF A g L I SFran s
ERELNETNBEENERBERR -

BREEANBNEMH
HE_Z—+HF+-_A=1+—HLFE &
EEABZHGMEES DOFINEIIAT

Number of members of senior management

Remuneration bands HEMEE SEEAB A
HK$1,000,001 = HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7T — 1,500,000/ 7T 2
Total 4zt 2
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to section 347 of the SFO and the Model Code,
were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company
and its associated corporation
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Approximate
percentage of the
issued share capital

of the Company
Number of {524 a]
Director Company Nature of interest ordinary shares BEITRR
E=x NG| E=EME kA BMOBED L
Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu™ The Company Interest of controlled companies 1,466,386,559 73.24%
EEHEELO ZAY/NS] REH A AR
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta® The Company Interest of spouse 1,466,386,559 73.24%
FHERAED EA/NG]] [t
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Director Associated corporation Nature of interest shares  shareholding interest
5% TR A E EmMtE BRIVEEB  HRESOBES L
Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu Next Focus Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 20,000 40%
SEHEWL EHAA
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta Next Focus Holdings Limited Interest of spouse 20,000 40%
FEERSE fofBfgas
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng Next Focus Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 15,000 30%
FREMIE L EnEEA
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu Next Focus Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 15,000 30%
ERarsE L BEEAA
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS IN
SHARES (Continued)
Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

and its associated corporation (Continued)
Notes:

m Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu directly owns 40% of Next Focus Holdings Limited, which, in turn,
indirectly owns 100% of Standard Cosmos Limited, Next Focus Holdings Limited is
therefore a controlled corporation of Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu pursuant to Section 316 of the
SFO. As such, interest of the 1,466,386,559 shares of the Company owned by Next
Focus Holdings Limited were attributable to Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu.

) Mr. LEE Ming-Ta is the spouse of Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu and accordingly, is deemed to
be interested in the 1,466,386,559 shares of the Company attributable to Dr. TSAI
Yen-Yu pursuant to Section 316 of the SFO.

Details of the interests of Directors and chief executives in the derivatives
interests in the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017 are disclosed
in the Share Options which are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Save as disclosed above, so far as known to any Directors as at 31 December
2017, none of the Directors or chief executives of the Company or any of their
close associates had or was deemed to have any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required to be recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to section 347 of
the SFO and the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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SHARE OPTIONS

The Company

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

On 13 May 201
Board of Directors can grant options for the subscription of the Company’s

1, the Company adopted a share option scheme whereby the

shares to any full-time employee of the Group, the chief executive, executive or
non-executive director of the Group at the time when a share option is granted
to such person as determined by the Board at as a performance incentive and/
or reward for their continued and improved service with the Group and by
enhancing eligible participants' contribution to the Group, in order to advance
the interests of the Company and its shareholders and such other persons.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, no share option was granted under
the share option scheme.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme disclosed above, at no time during the
year was the Company, its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed Securities
Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the listed securities of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2017.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2017, within the knowledge of the Directors, the following
persons or corporations had or deemed or taken to have an interest or a short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which were required
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

FERR

RZT—+F+-RA=+—8 $EFEMHMH -
THATZOEBR AR B AR R D
BRWR R EEREESRAERDIEXVED
F2R3NWARA AR WENESIAR » K
AERNRIEE S LG GRH£336GA R 7

ATHFENECMORRIORE

RAQXTRGD REERSD 2HFR
RAFEREEI0BITZEER

Number of

ordinary shares

Approximate

percentage
of the issued
share capital

beneficially held of the Company
Name of substantial shareholder Notes  Nature of interest Eafa HARRFIR T
FTERRER S HE Mer #ERtE gl d= IR B D
Efficient Market Investments Limited Beneficial owner 838,530,000(L) 41.88%
EREAA
Adventa Group Limited Beneficial owner 236,580,000(L) 11.82%
ExmlBA
Fortune Bright Group Limited Beneficial owner 236,580,000(L) 11.82%
BEamEBA
Starsign International Limited 1 Interest of controlled companies 1,314,030,000(L) 65.63%
ZPEH A AR
Next Focus Holdings Limited 2 Beneficial owner/Interest of 1,466,386,559(L) 73.24%

controlled companies

ERBAAN RIEH AR

(L): Long position

(L :
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)
Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company (Continued)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (Continued)
Notes:

m Starsign International Limited is the sole shareholder of Standard Cosmos
Limited, which, in turn, is the sole shareholder of Efficient Market Investments
Limited, Adventa Group Limited and Fortune Bright Group Limited. As such,
the 1,311,690,000 shares of the Company collectively held by Efficient Market
Investments Limited, Adventa Group Limited and Fortune Bright Group Limited
and 2,340,000 shares of the Company held directly by Standard Cosmos Limited
(totalling 1,314,030,000 shares of the Company) are attributable to Standard
Cosmos Limited and Starsign International Limited.

) Next Focus Holdings Limited directly held 152,356,559 shares of the Company and
directly owns 100% of Starsign International Limited. As such, the 1,314,030,000
shares of the Company in which Starsign International Limited was interested were
attributable to Next Focus Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Directors are not aware of
any other person (other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company)
who had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Group had the following significant transactions with connected persons:

On 8 December 2016, (a) the Taipei Tenancy Agreement was entered into
between B A 3 £ ¥ B IR 5 A BR 2 Fl(Natural Beauty Bio-Technology
Company Limited) (“Taiwan NB”"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, as tenant and Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, an Executive Director and the
controlling shareholder of the Company, as landlord in relation to the lease of
certain premises in Taipei, Taiwan which has been used as the headquarters
and training and spa centre of the Group in Taipei, Taiwan, for a period of
two years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2018, with monthly rental of
TW$2,250,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$548,112.1) to extend the term
of the previous tenancy agreement of the same subject matter; and (b) the
Pa-Der Tenancy Agreement was entered into between Taiwan NB as tenant and
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng, an Executive Director, as landlord in relation to the lease of
certain premises in Pa-Der Road, Taipei, Taiwan which has been used as a spa
centre of the Group, in Taipei, Taiwan, for a period of two years from 1 January
2017 to 31 December 2018 with a monthly rental of TW$75,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$18,270.4) to extend the term of the previous tenancy

agreement of the same subject matter.

Details of the above-mentioned tenancy agreements were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 29 October 2014 and 8 December 2016.
Unless otherwise stated, for illustration purpose, the exchange rate used in the
above tenancy agreements is HK$1.00 to TW$4.105.

The above transactions are regarded as continuing connected transactions of
the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Particulars of the
transactions are disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Independent Non-executive Directors confirmed that the transactions have
been entered into by the Group in the ordinary and usual course of its business,
on terms no less favourable than terms available from independent third parties
and were negotiated and conducted by the Group on an arm’s length basis
and on normal commercial terms and in accordance with the terms of the
agreements governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable and are in
the interests of the Group and its shareholders as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

The board of Directors confirmed that the Group's auditors have confirmed the
matters set out in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above:

(i) no contracts of significance subsisted to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year ended 31 December 2017 or at any time during such year; and

(i) there were no transactions which need to be disclosed as connected
transactions in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors had any interest in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of
the Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is adopted by the Board
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors and chief executives of the Company are
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and are decided by the Board,
as authorized by shareholders at the annual general meeting, having regard
to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to Directors
and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles, or
the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share
capital was held by the public as at the date of this Annual Report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2017 have been audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu which
being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

TSAIl Yen-Yu
Chairperson
Hong Kong

27 March 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NATURAL BEAUTY BIO-TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Natural Beauty
Bio-Technology Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as "the Group") set out on pages 82 to 166, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants ("the Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIYRBMBES

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

BEEITEE

Valuation of allowance for inventories

FEEEE

We identified the valuation of allowance for inventories as a
key audit matter due to the significant management estimate
involved in the net realisable value and the significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements.

HRTFEREGRE 2 IR FEMSIRMNEREERE G R
HIFEUMBHREAEBEATE - ALK MEZEEIR R
@E%n‘l’%lﬁ °

As disclosed in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group's inventories mainly include raw materials and
finished goods. As at 31 December 2017, the allowance for
obsolete inventories of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$10,481,000.

AR A BTSRRI 18P IR EE EFEEXEaERM
BREKG R E—tFE+ A= + H S£EERER
ERHE X 510481,00078 7T ©

As set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the
management of the Group reviews inventories on a product-by-
product basis at the end of each reporting period, and makes
allowance for obsolete inventories or slow-moving inventories
that are no longer suitable for use in production or trading. The
management estimates the net realisable value for such items
with reference to the recent selling prices, subsequent sales and
the market conditions.

MR A M SRR E4TE  EEEEEEENSHREN
BEEAREENERENTE ]IMEVLTEM RELE
IRHZRERFHFERBELRERE - EEES2E 0
BB  HRHEERMSGIRAMMGETZFEE 2 fﬁﬁr@
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEFHHRARENSENEES R

Our procedures in relation to valuation of allowance for
inventories included:

BT H T EREHENERF B

e Obtaining an understanding of the management controls
over the identification of obsolete inventories and the
assessment of their net realisable value;

s EREEHEERZIRER
BEE

ERFHEEAERFE T

e FEvaluating the reasonableness of the methods and estimation
used in net realisable value of inventories;

s HENEFEANERFEMERNTERBEZEGE
1

e Involving our internal IT specialist in testing the inventory
aging reports generated by the application system and
checking to the supporting documents for its accuracy, on a
sample basis; and

. ?-%?MF?E’JW*Béﬁﬂﬂ&ﬁ%/ﬁﬂ*&ﬂﬁﬁﬁNymﬁfrgiﬁﬁ
FEERRS - WHEEREAMET AN REFHAX
&

e Performing physical observation of the Group's physical
inventory, inspecting the Group's facilities to identify any
deficiency of the count process and observing the inventories
position to identify any indicator of impairment.

. %T%%.ZEEEﬁEL?TEi‘E&Q/T’$ R BB Z R
W ABBI B BEF A e R ARSI
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

HEEEE

Revenue recognition on product sales

En 1 B BR R AA

We identified the revenue recognition on product sales as a
key audit matter due to the significant impact on consolidated
financial statements.

RN EmAERERRALGEMERRAFERY
SEF IR % F IR RRAS AT A -

i
M

Product sales are the Group's key revenue source and primarily
come from franchised spas, self-owned spas and concessionary

counters at department stores, while terms of trade would vary.

EmHESEREEERANRER - BEBZRB MENKES
D BEREKETOLRBEERREE  HPESIRKATR
BERBHAATE e

As disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group recognised total revenue amounted to approximately
HK$399,579,000 in 2017, in which product sales amounted to
approximately HK$393,872,000, or 98.6% of the Group's total

revenue.

B AE M BRERMASHEE EEER_Z—+tF
AU A L) A399,579,000/8 T 0 HAFEMEEREEY
393,872,000/ 7T (B fh & & B 48 A 98.6%)

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZHARES

FRFZEE (9

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEFPHRREFSENEEIE

Our procedures in relation to revenue recognition on
product sales included:

HAETHMA RN EAIZF 1

e Obtaining the sales contracts, on a sample basis, and
reviewing the key terms of trade to assess if the revenue
recognition policy is in compliance with the relevant
accounting standard;

o MHEFRRSHEANLENISEHHER - U
ARSI R A HA R R e

e Checking to inventories and sales records subsequent
to the year end for any significant sales return occurred
after balance sheet date; and

s BEAFRENGFERHEELE  UEREERER
RO HEEMNERNHERE &

e Checking to the supporting documents, on a sample
basis, before and after the balance sheet date to ensure
that revenue was properly recognised in the appropriate

period.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIYRBMBES

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIYRBMBES

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,

including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably

be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor's
report is Jacky Wong Suk Hung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit itor Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

ceBEkEMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_T—tHF+-_A=1t—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—+F —ERF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt FET FAT
Revenue WA 5 399,579 475,225
Cost of sales SHEK A (94,467) (122,366)
Gross profit EF 305,112 352,859
Other income and other gains HAb Y= FFS 7 12,879 36,426
Distribution and selling expenses DIERHEER (100,946) (113,142)
Administrative expenses TR (61,457) (73,420)
Other expenses and other losses HAbFAZFER (8,850) (6,506)
Profit before tax FRAH A ) 146,738 196,217
Income tax expense FriSFiF 8 (41,350) (47,814)
Profit for the year AR5 F 9 105,388 148,403
Other comprehensive income (expense): Hin2mEUE (BR) !
Item that will not be reclassified to TEHEF THEE
profit or loss: Bk IEA -
Remeasurement of defined benefit TE R RS2
pension plans ZEHEE 23 (1,126) 715
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to H & [ E# BRT 5 IR E
profit or loss: Bk HA -
Exchange differences arising on translation HMEGINETSEE
of foreign operations ZEHERR 52,379 (36,/473)
Other comprehensive income (expense) for the year AEEEMEmEmMWEE () 51,253 (35,758)
Total comprehensive income for the year RNEEE2EWZBRE 156,641 112,645
Profit for the year attributable to: INTATERERFER R
Owners of the Company ZIN/NETEZ SN 105,388 148403
Total comprehensive income for the year AT AL EEAREE
attributable to: ZHEHWSARE
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZZ =N 156,641 112,645
Earnings per share FRZH) 12
Basic and diluted BEARREE HK5.3 cents HK7 .4 cents
5.378l 74784
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BRI R R

n\l-ﬁ
At 31 December 2017
RZE—+F+=-H=+—~8H
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BT THERT THT
Non-current assets FRENEE
Investment properties WA 14 7,893 7,196
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 15 198,610 173,542
Prepaid lease payments BT E R 16 52,431 48,296
Goodwill [ 17 27,095 25510
Pledged bank deposits HWIIBITFR 20 - 1,706
286,029 256,250
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 18 85,077 49,842
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMEWBER 19 109,289 84,628
Prepaid lease payments BT ER 16 1,249 1,127
Pledged bank deposits EIRRI TR 20 7,338 1,706
Bank balances and cash RITEERIRS 20 288,903 428,633
491,856 565,936
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REAM IR 21 91,282 132,198
Deferred income REW 22 5,981 6,223
Tax payable JERTHRIR 18,389 24,305
115,652 162,726
Net current assets hEEERE 376,204 403,210
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERARBERS 662,233 659,460
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Deferral tax liabilities RERIBERE 26 5,863 686
Retirement benefit obligations BIREREE 23 5,624 4,01
650,746 654,673
Capital and reserves R R & E
Share capital N 24 200,210 200,210
Reserves & 450,536 454,463
Total equity R 650,746 654,673

The consolidated financial statements on pages 82 to 166 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2018 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Dr. TSAIl Yen-Yu

EEREELT
DIRECTOR

EF

FREEFI66AMIREMBBRERN_-ZT —
FZA -+ tHESESHEWIRETIE - 91

HIATRERZRE

BAXEYREERAT

Mr. LEE Ming-Ta
FHERE
DIRECTOR
EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GAREEDE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_T—tHF+-_A=1t—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAFFE AR
Share
Share Capital Share  Statutory Translation options  Retained

capital surplus  premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total

Bx  BARS RORE EERE EiRE RERE RERN @t

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

Thr FTAT  TEx  TExr TEr T TET  TAT

Balance at 1 January 2016 WoE—NE—F-RBE 0020 @55 4016 16340 828 1009 192007 732608

Profit for the year RERRT] - - - - - - 148403 148403
Other comprehensive (expense)income  AFEEM2E (A1) Wi

for the year - - - - (36473) - 715 (35,758)
Total comprehensive (expense) income ~ AFE 2 (%) MEEE

for the year - - - - (36473) - 149,118 112,645
Dividends recognised as distrioution ~~ BERAARZRE (HzE13)

(note 13) - - - - - - (190,600) (190600)
Balance at 31 December 2016 R4

+TZA=t—H&E 200,210 42554 41016 163490 45,769 11,109 150,525 654,673
Profitfor the year RERRT] = = = - = - 10538 105388
Other comprehensive income (expense) AN At 2ENE (Fx)

for the year - - - - 52379 - (1,126) 51253
Total comprehensive income for the year  ANFE 2B EHE - 5 5 5 52379 - 14262 156641
Dividends recognised as distribution RED R RE (F15513)

(note 13) - - - - - - (160,568) (160,568)
Transfer to statutory reserve RS = = = 12141 - - (12141 =
Balance at 31 December 2017 W=ZE—+&F

TZA=t—H&E 200,210 42554 41016 175631 98,148 11,109 82078 650,746
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Capital Surplus

The capital surplus represents the difference between the consideration paid
and the relevant share of the carrying value of the subsidiaries’ net assets
acquired upon the reorganisation of the Group in year 2002.

Share Premium

In accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium account is distributable to the owners of the Company immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed.

Statutory Reserve

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"), the PRC companies with foreign investment are required to transfer a
certain percentage of its profit after tax, as determined under the PRC accounting
regulations (the net profit under the PRC generally accepted accounting
principles (the “PRC GAAP")), to the general reserve fund and enterprise
expansion fund. Distribution of these reserves shall be made in accordance with
the Article of Association and approved by the board of directors each year.
Other PRC companies are required to transfer a certain percentage of their net
profit under the PRC GAAP to the statutory surplus reserve fund until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of their paid-in capital.

According to the laws and regulations of Taiwan, Taiwan companies shall set
aside 10% of their statutory net income each year for the legal reserve, until the
reserve balance has reached the paid-in share capital amount.

These above-mentioned reserves and funds cannot be used for purposes
other than those for which they were created and are not distributable as cash
dividends.

meERB B
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_T—tF+-_A=+—HILFE

xR
BARBEENREREE SR _FA%E
SHEFTEN B AR A FE 2 £ -

Bt m(E
REFSHBARE - ROEEETERME
HDEREBMEIETELDEAA °

EE

RiphEARLME ([HE]) BREMIRR
5l - PESNERE AR ARRIETE SR
BEzEBEEN (PEARSFRAET
MM FETE O LERE —RERES LD
XRRED - DR ERBEARBRREME
RAMNZATEET  TKESSTFIE - H
o B R RZAKEFE QR e RANE T AR
ETEOHBEREZERMNFEEES  BE
AEBBRBESEREDBBRAR50%
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
n‘l__]_\/\IEr Y 2 /)||.: i'%
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+tF+_A=+—HULFE
2017 2016
—ZE—+5F —EF—RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES reEy
Profit before tax MRAH R A 146,738 196,217
Adjustments for; KRR N &IE
Interest income FLEM = (4,325) (6,187)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BEMEREITE 20,587 22,440
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWZE - HE ME&E 2 EE 191 1,776
Receipt of compensation income arising from WSUER R 4% | E 70 & fhhde 1 /28 A Y
termination of a tenancy agreement ERs - (19,094)
Release of prepaid lease payments Bml 5 ALt ER 1,180 1,180
Increase in fair value of investment properties B YA FEIEMN - (532)
Allowance for obsolete inventories [REFERE 1,737 327
Allowance (reversal of allowance) on trade receivables B DRI BR B (R m) 3,457 (414)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital &3& & & ZERI 2 &S HERE 169,565 195,713
Increase in inventories FEZAN (37,293) (3,264)
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables B 5 REMPERERR CR>) 1N (40,916) 14,714
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 K H M FEURBR 5K N (28,388) (29,870)
Decrease in deferred income B R (242) (370)
Decrease in retirement benefit obligations RINEFE TR - (7,812)
Cash generated from operations REEBREEZIRE 62,726 169,111
Income taxes paid BRATSHIE (41,550) (41,159)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHSREFHR 21,176 127,952
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
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2017 2016
—E—t5F T REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BERZE (32,290) (19,030)
Purchase of land use right EE AR (369) =
Interest received B U F 5 4,325 6,187
Receipt of compensation income arising from IWER R4 1 TR B e m = A Y
termination of a tenancy agreement A E R - 19,094
(Placement) release of pledged bank deposits (17 N) BRBR PRI TIF X (3,669) 5491
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE (FTH) 3R 38 (32,003) 11,742
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITY REITEMAESFHE
Dividends paid EIR{TARE (160,568) (190,600)
DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HERREESEYRD (171,395) (50,906)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY R—B—BZERERESEEY 428,633 502,721
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES Exgus oy 31,665 (23,182)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER R+=RA=+—R8=2
HeERBEEEEY
represented by bank balances and cash FBIRITEFENIR S 288,903 428,633
BAZEEYRRERAT —E—tEFHR g7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

nv'_]_\

B HRARME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE-ZE—

88

+TET_A=T—HILFE

General

The Company was incorporated in Cayman Islands on 29 June 2001 as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares have been listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 28 March 2002. Its parent and ultimate holding company are
Standard Cosmos Limited and Next Focus Holding Limited, respectively,
and both were incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the corporate information to this annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in (a) manufacturing and selling of skin care, beauty
and aroma-therapeutic products, health supplements and make-up
products and (b) provision of skin treatments, beauty and spa services,
skin care consulting and beauty training. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars

("HKS"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current
year.

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA”) for the
first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses

Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle

The application of the above amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group's financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.
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2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong 2.
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs

that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments'

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts*

HK(FRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

HK(FRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions'

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10

with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?
Sale or Contribution of Assets between

and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture®
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures?
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfer of Investment Property"
Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual Improvements to

Amendments to HKFRSs

HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle?
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong 2.
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(Continued)
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs and Interpretations
mentioned below, the directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs and
Interpretations will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge
accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirement of HKFRS 9 which is relevant to the Group is:

in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires an
expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss
model under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an
entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses
are recognised.

Based on the Group's financial instruments and risk management policies
as at 31 December 2017, the directors of the Company anticipate the
following potential impact on initial application of HKFRS 9:
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impairment

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will result in earlier provision of
credit losses which are not yet incurred in relation to the Group’s financial
assets measured at amortised cost and other items that subject to the
impairment provisions upon application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company, if the expected
credit loss model was to be applied by the Group, the accumulated
amount of impairment loss to be recognised by the Group as at 1 January
2018 would be slightly increased as compared to the accumulated
amount recognised under HKAS 39 mainly attributable to expected credit
losses provision on trade and other receivables, pledged bank deposits,
bank balances and cash. Such further impairment recognised under
expected credit loss model would reduce the opening retained earnings
and increase the deferred tax assets at 1 January 2018.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive model
for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
the related interpretations when it becomes effective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations
in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance
obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying
the particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far
more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with
specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation to
the identification of performance obligations, principal versus agent
considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15
in the future may result in more disclosures, however, the directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 will have a
material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the

respective reporting periods.
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of lease
arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees.
HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of whether
an identified asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions of operating
leases and finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is
replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement
of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as
the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments
as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use and
those classified as investment properties while other operating lease
payments are presented as operating cash flows. Upon application of
HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into
a principal and an interest portion which will be presented as financing
and operating cash flows respectively by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid lease payments
for leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The application of
HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in classification of these assets
depending on whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately
or within the same line item at which the corresponding underlying assets
would be presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward
the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require
a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of HK$31,425,000 as disclosed in note 27. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the definition
of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental deposits paid
of HK$608,000 and refundable rental deposits received of HK$323,000 as
rights and obligation under leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on
the definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not
payments relating to the right to use the underlying assets, accordingly,
the carrying amounts of such deposits may be adjusted to amortised
cost and such adjustments are considered as additional lease payments.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid would be included in the
carrying amount of right-of-use assets. Adjustments to refundable rental
deposits received would be considered as advance lease payments.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result in changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above.
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Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain properties that are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements are determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's
relevant components of equity and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and the
non-controlling interests according to the Group's and the non-controlling

interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owner of
the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and liabilities of
that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities
of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 or, when applicable, the cost on

initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of
the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating segment.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of
cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal (or any of the cash-generating units within group of

cash-generating units in which the Group monitors goodwill).

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates
and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of revenue from operating
leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset. Other than investment properties
measured under fair value model, such costs are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land held
under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating
leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are

incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on
a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which includes
both leasehold land and building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire property is
accounted as an operating lease. Specifically, the entire consideration
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element and building element

at initial recognition.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land and building (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis except for those that are classified and accounted for
as investment properties under the fair value model. When the payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the leasehold land and building
elements, the entire property is generally classified as if the leasehold land
is under finance lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (ie. Hong Kong dollars) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired arising
on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities
of that foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and
that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits
is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period.
Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of
the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan
assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a charge or credit recognised
in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected
immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to profit or
loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan
amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the
beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well

as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);

net interest expense or income; and

remeasurement.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits (Continued)
The Group presents the first two components of defined benefit costs
in profit or loss in the line item employee benefits expense. Curtailment
gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the actual deficit or surplus
in the Group's defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this
calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future
contributions to the plans.

Discretionary contributions made by employees or third parties reduce
service cost upon payment of these contributions to the plan.

When the formal terms of the plans specify that there will be contributions
from employees or third parties, the accounting depends on whether the
contributions are linked to service, as follows:

If the contributions are not linked to services (for example
contributions are required to reduce a deficit arising from losses
on plan assets or from actuarial losses), they are reflected in the

remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability (asset).

If contributions are linked to services, they reduce service costs. For
the amount of contribution that is dependent on the number of
years of service, the entity reduces service cost by attributing the
contributions to periods of service using the attribution method
required by HKAS 19 paragraph 70 for the gross benefits. For the
amount of contribution that is independent of the number of years
of service, the entity reduces service cost in the period in which the
related service is rendered.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the

Group entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit
and when it recognises any related restructuring costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are recognised as
an expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages
and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits
are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows
expected to be made by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities' carrying
amounts resulting from service cost, interest and remeasurements are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that another HKFRS

requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing
similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at
the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments determined at
the grant date without taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve). At
the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment of
all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of
the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share options reserve.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Share-based payment arrangements (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Share options granted to employees (Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in
share options reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the share options
reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such
properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless
the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

e R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-F L T-A=+ BLEE

FESHEE @
BiE (48)
AEBERMNBARIRE 2 BBEZR
ﬁﬂjiﬁﬁﬁﬁw ERRIBEE - RS
Bt EEERERE 2D - BER
ZRA e N2 A B AR ZREEE BIBR N o
MERZEZRE L ER Z*HF‘ET%M&@?
NERMEACEEREBEEEMS * H
ERA] ge BVS B 58 2 JE &R 1t i A1) < B B
EZEHZAENER BEHYERER
TEHART pA 1] 52,56 2R 38 (Bl A AR o

AEBEENEREHHEE B RIT
MIAEEZREETAAR - AAEA
EENIS B 59 2 FE AR T s A1 m] Mg 0] 2= 36
B EERR °

BERERIBEERBETRNIBE HREE
BHERMIERLER/M2HER (R

MIER)  REHNFEAGRHERE
EHHERZREAE

ﬁﬁﬁ%%%&ﬁ?Zﬁ%&%$%l
TEHR IR E B AE R W RS EEEE
FEBERREEEZHEER -

BETEBREREMS - MAXFERR
‘JrEZ?xé’«WJ%ZﬁEﬁ@E{E’*”Lﬂ%

ER2HE - B IEZ R R BB RIRR
Sho BEREMEA THERRNARE 2
EBEN (EXBEREEERRAM

3F5§ﬂ§¢1 BRRENMEMBEEZBAK
MoKEMNDR) ARER - FERERE
%&?ﬁﬁ °

EHNMEERIA N BRPHER - BRIE
%ﬁmgﬁmﬁwiﬁ%ﬁﬁE%%%
SmPHERCEBER  EUERT B
H S R A A TR T 0 Bl B A 2 T W e =k
BEERERTER - MEBEHETD
S RIEMELZE PEEHIAM
5 BABBREEDNFARKEHZE
FTRERA -

BAXEYRBEERAT —T—tFFH 107



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VI RAR MR

Ny =|

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE

108

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and freehold land
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than properties under construction
as described below and freehold land) are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees. Such properties are
classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets other than
properties under construction and freehold land held for use less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of

the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Buildings under development for future owner-occupied purpose
When buildings are in the course of development for production or for
administrative purposes, the amortisation of prepaid lease payments
provided during the construction period is included as part of costs of
buildings under construction. Buildings under construction are carried
at cost, less any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when they are in the
location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by the management).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values. All of the Group's property
interests held under operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are classified and accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value model. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is

derecognised.

Impairment on tangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any).

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment on tangible assets other than goodwill (Continued)
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. In
allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to
the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value
in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro-rata to
the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount
under another standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another standard, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that
standard.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs
of inventories are determined on a weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net

carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash)
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less

any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated

future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or

principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
terms of the customers, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period,
the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised

cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables and other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
assets and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in
profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of goodwiill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated, which is the higher of the value in use or fair value
less costs of disposal. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, or changes in
facts and circumstances which results in downward revision of future cash
flows, a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2017, the
carrying amount of goodwill was HK$27,095,000 (2016: HK$25,510,000).
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 17.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is an objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition, where applicable). Where the future
cash flows are less than expected, or being revised downward due to
changes in facts and circumstance, a material impairment loss may arise.
As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of trade receivables was
HK$98,151,000 (2016: HK$72,972,000), net of allowance for doubtful debts
of HK$5,089,000 (2016: HKS1,476,000).
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4. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of inventories

The Group reviews inventories on a product-by-product basis at the
end of each reporting period, and recognised allowance for obsolete
and slow-moving inventory items that are no longer suitable for use in
production or trading. The management estimates the net realisable value
for such items based primarily on the latest invoice prices, sales after year
end and current market conditions. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying
amount of inventories net of allowance for inventory of HK$10,481,000
(2016: HK$9,957,000) was HK$85,077,000 (2016: HK$49,842,000).

5. Revenue
Revenue represents the net amount received and receivables for (i) goods
sold by the Group to outside customers which is stated net of sales returns
and rebates and (i) service income from provision of skin treatments,
beauty and Spa services for the year, and is analysed as follows:

EYHFTEHBETREETER
R ()

FEZRE
AEERSREHHLE AR EMEBE
MBEHNGFE  UEREHRATHES
BEEESR S 2RERSHEFEEE
ELHEE EEEXFERBEROHAEER
B FHREHSERBEITMRGFZ
EHAZASRFEE RZE—LF+
“RA=+—H FEZEEEHNKRE
BB 110,481,000 T (ZF — N F
9,957,000/ JT) 485,077,000 7T (= &
—7N4E 1 49,842,00087T) °

WA
WAAFEEBATISEZERRE
YR ((AKBETINEEPZER
(MBREERE RERMETIER) KR
HULE R - XA RKERBE ZRBK
A AT

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Sales of goods EmiHE 393,872 469,894
Service income BRAGU A 5,707 5,331
399,579 475,225
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Segment Information

HKFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis
of internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"), the Chief
Executive Officer ("CEQ") of the Company, in order to allocate resources
to the segment and to assess its performance. The CEO of the Company
reviews internal reports which focus on geographical segments by
location of customers for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance. This is the basis upon which the
Group is organised.

Specifically, the Group's reportable and operating segments under HKFRS
8 are as follows:

1. The PRC
2. Taiwan
3. Others (Hong Kong and Malaysia)

e R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_T—tF+-_A=+—HILFE

PEHER
AN BMELERNESFRTE - KEHI
BIRBEEZEERRA ([FEEERK
AL (BIARARTEAEE ([1TERAE])
Eiﬁ%ﬁﬁZKEIW*B#ﬁiz%ﬁﬂz*ﬁ’“
RE D FEEERBEAEREBARS
"Hﬂﬁﬁ%x“*ﬁ WD HRIR -
F%Tf’ﬁﬂjé{ﬁ P E R E D BRI - A
RETHARSERANBERE - BER
EXTZBIREFPEE SO D
o W IAEBBHEE 2 ELE -
ABME  BEEBMBRELERIFSE
Z% EAREBZ ARG REE DN
=

—

B RRE

@

Hith (BB RFHRAE)
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6. Segment Information (Continued) 6. TEBEFR &)

Segment revenues and results DEHBMARELE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results from TXARAEE 2 HELERARERR

continuing operations by reportable and operating segments. AR RACE D EBIEL 2 DT ©

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z—tF+-A=+t—HLEE
The PRC Taiwan Others Total
FRE K BE = Hith B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FET FEx FEx

Revenue A 319,228 77,232 3,119 399,579
Segment profit (loss) DELEA (EHE) 135,255 18,550 (688) 153,117
Unallocated corporate expenses RAOMARZH (10,704)
Unallocated income P EEH&Z@ 4,325
Profit before tax BREL AT A 146,738
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE_ZT—R"F+_A=1T—RHLFE
The PRC Taiwan Others Total

lEipN175 = EAib #azE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TAT TAT

Revenue WA 386,409 85,655 3,161 475,225
Segment profit (loss) SEREF| (1) 177,969 26,461 (4,105) 200,325
Unallocated corporate expenses AOBEARLZH (10,295)
Unallocated income RO BilEs 6,187
Profit before tax Br AT A 196,217
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Segment Information (Continued) 6. TEBEFR &)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) DEBBAREE (8)
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the KEDE 2 GETBR AR KR 2 5T
Group's accounting policies described in note 3. Segment profit (loss) AR (ﬁﬂ M 5E3FT3) o 95 300 A (/&5
represents the profit earned (loss incurred) by each segment without B) BED RIS 2 afl (FIEEZ
allocation of central administration costs, directors’ salaries and interest E1E) B UARDEFRRITHER - &
income. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of EHMRAEWA - 1A T EHER
resource allocation and performance assessment. DR EFRBAFTEMAEZEEEREKEAME
HERE 2R -
Other segment information Hittm BER
Segment and
consolidated
The PRC Taiwan Others total
DER
FRE KB =) Hith FEHE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERx FER FHET FHET
2017 —E_t&
Amounts included in the measure of D &5 A (E51E) 5T A
segment profit (10ss): THIFKEE -
Depreciation of property, Y% - BB RSB E
plant and equipment 16,183 4,388 16 20,587
Release of prepaid lease payments B g ALt HEER 1,180 - - 1,180
Loss on disposal of property, LEME - BER
plant and equipment BiE 2z EE 191 - - 191
Allowance (reversal of allowance) PRETFERE
for obsolete inventories (BfERmE) 1,751 46 (60) 1,737
Allowance on trade receivables B 5 FEUBR TR 3,457 - - 3,457
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+FE+-_A=+—HItEE
Segment Information (Continued) 6. TEBEFR &)
Other segment information (Continued) Hibp&EFR (48)
Segment and
consolidated
The PRC Taiwan Others total
DEb R
Hp B R e =V Hh e e
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
2016 —TRF
Amounts included in the measure of 2B A (E1E) 5t A T
segment profit (10ss): TRER
Depreciation of property, W - BB REEITE
plant and equipment 18,148 4270 22 22,440
Release of prepaid lease payments Biml g AL ER 1,180 = = 1,180
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BEX
plant and equipment Rz EE 1617 159 - 1,776
Compensation income arising Ea FHRE W mEE
from termination of B (R
a tenancy agreement (19,094) - - (19,094)
Allowance (reversal of allowance) RETERE (BERD)
for obsolete inventories 293 @) 36 327
Reversal of allowance on B 5 RUERE B 5
trade receivables (414) = = (414)
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Segment Information (Continued)

Geographical information

The Group is principally engaged in (a) manufacturing and sale of a range
of products including skin care, beauty and aroma-therapeutic products,
health supplements and mark-up products and (b) provision of skin
treatments, beauty and spa services and skin care consulting and beauty
training. The analysis of the Group's revenue by type of business for the
year are set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group's non-current assets are presented based on the geographical
location of the assets as detailed below:

e R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-F L T-A=+ BLEE

DEBER (@)

430 5 6
AEEETEREQRERNEES =
R RBHER BEASRLESES
REBED  RORHIEESE  £3
o 7N R PR A LA T B 5 3822 BB P R 7S Rk 2
R o AR EE R IR AR LB IERE
2 AT E R A B ISR M 2T

NEB 7 IR EBELRBEMEMIEF
B2HT :

2017 2016
—E—tE —TF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
The PRC SRICiPN!3 234,300 206,764
Taiwan = 51,701 47,740
Others HAth 28 40
286,029 254,544

Information about major customers BREIEZFEH

The Group has a very wide customer base, no single customer contributed
10% or more to the Group's revenue for both 2017 and 2016.

AEBZEFPERER R-_T—tF
R-_Z-RNEREFESF  LEEM
BE-BPZERMGAREZ B A10%K
PAL e
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE—T—+F+-A=t+—HILFE

. A
7. Other Income and Other Gains 7. Hftsm MRS
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Interest on bank deposits RITIF RS 4,325 6,187
Rental income from investment properties TEYE 2 B2 WE 206 179
Rental income from other properties and E Az REE 2 el
equipment 1,869 2,115
Financial refunds (Note i) BESERR (FE) 4,187 6,498
Income resulting from expired REEIEINEEEE 2 Wt
franchisees deposit 1,594 -
Increase in fair value of investment properties & ¥E A F(EIE N - 532
Compensation income arising from BRI 4% | EAH & fhhe T /28 AR
termination of a tenancy agreement (Note i)~ ffEUkzs (i) - 19,094
Others Hib 698 1,821
12,879 36,426
Note i Pursuant to the local practice of the finance bureau of the provinces in i BEETHBREAENRBARKLEME
which certain PRC subsidiaries operate, the PRC subsidiaries will receive B2 BREPIFTER A 2 B 1B
financial refunds from other taxes paid in the form of government grants BEHEFTBRAENE AR GAIERES
through negotiation with the relevant finance bureau. However, the refunds R BB P TR RS - B BBUT
are subject to review annually. It is therefore uncertain if these subsidiaries e FAEEMMIBRE - FAR
will continue to be eligible for such financial refunds in the future. DR E A B TR BT - At -
BB ERNETFEITR « #ut
ReeETE BB BARKRBREGE
BETEAREZAR LMMBERR -
The financial refunds represent unconditional tax refunds received from the B 75 3R SR IS 7N B 1B R B K o A A /B
local government in compensation for taxes incurred and paid by the PRC AR B #h 7 U FT 1S A FR R A
operating subsidiaries of the Group. WORBAREEEE R ARFIRK -
Note ii:In 2004, Shanghai Jianggiao Agriculture Development Co. Ltd.(Jianggiac”) i RZTTNF - EEIBERERES
as lessor and the Group, as lessee entered into a lease agreement to build RAaE (DIF]) ((ERLEA) EAR
a spa resort in Jianggiao County, Jiading District, Shanghai. During the S8 (ERFEBAN) MR ELERES
year ended 31 December 2016, through negotiation, both Jianggiao and IBEER —BKEEBN M A
the Group agreed to terminate the agreement in advance. Meanwhile EfZ -HE_T—R"FTZA=T
Jiangajiao agreed to pay a compensation of approximately Renminbi (‘RMB”) —BIFE  IBRASEFERBHE
15,983,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$19,094,000) to the Group. % BHRERMK LR o R -
ABRAEMASEZNHENARE
(TAR1)15983,0007T (18 & R &I
19,094,000/ 7T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERERM T

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_ZT—+E+-_RA=+—HIFE

8. FrEHiBAX

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FAET
The charge comprises: SHBRE
Taxation in the PRC R B R BERR TE
Current year REEZ 23,171 36,542
Over provision in prior years BEFERRERE (1,383) (2,982)
Withholding tax on dividends IR S FEHF 6,178 5636
27,966 39,196
Taxation in Taiwan BRI
Current year REE 3,312 3,321
Under (over) provision in prior years BEFERETR (BREEE) 13 ©)
Withholding tax on dividends IR BFEHF 5,305 3621
8,630 6,933
Taxation in Hong Kong and other jurisdictions 24 & B Bl A @ R 18
Current year KEEZ 340 1426
Over provision in prior years B FEBRREE (172) (899)
168 527
Deferred taxation (note 26) IEEFTE (Bi3E26)
Current year REE 4,586 1,158
41,350 47814
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE
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Income Tax Expense (Continued)

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards. The statutory
withholding income tax rate for non-PRC resident is 10%. The Company
has obtained tax benefit approval from the tax bureau in 2014, which
stipulates that the withholding tax rate for Natural Beauty China Holding
Limited could be reduced to 5% for the dividend income from July 2011
to December 2017 and 7% for royalty fee from January 2012 to December
2018.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and Taiwan,
dividend withholding tax is imposed at a rate of 5% and 20% on
dividends that are declared in respect of profits earned by PRC and Taiwan
subsidiaries respectively and that are received by non-local resident
entities. Withholding tax on dividends of approximately HK$6,178,000
(2016: HK$5,636,000) and HKS$5,305,000 (2016: HKS3,612,000) for the PRC
and Taiwan were recognised respectively.

Corporate Income Tax in Taiwan is charged at 17% in both years.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable
profit for both years.
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FR8BBX (@)
BiEPEARKMBEOERESHE ([0
EMBRED) RECEMBRIEERKE
Bl - BT NF—A—HE 7K
EHEBARZREB25% - FPREER
BSAEBMBATBREABI10% - AAF
E-T—NFREHB R BERR
o BREFEIZERAR A AR SR
HENBEHER T ——F L AREZ
T—+F+ = AKRASw : RIS
ENENBRBHEA T ——F—AfE
ZEN\FTZABAET% °

IR A BK B &2 & AE R A B R AR ) -
B R KRR A &N B AR AT
BEFMERLBIEREREER
Bz iRE - BRETEMEED R A5%H
20% c FEIRFERAEZREBBMBAL
6,178,000 7T (= & — /X & : 5,636,000
& 7T) K&5,30500008 7T (ZF — N F ¢
3,612,000/ 7T) B9 5ll#ER

7 kit R E E E
17%E1E -

A0 B BE

EBEMNEHIR Lt MEFERE 2 ETER
Tw A 2 16.5%5tHE -



Income Tax Expense (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS SR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017

8.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before tax per

the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income as follows:

FrEREX @
AEEHESHAGOBAREMET
Mok 5 B RS B AT R BRI T -

BE-T tHF+-A=1T"BLFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Profit before tax BT BT A 146,738 196,217
Tax at domestic rates applicable to profits of ~ JERRTREZNREEEZR 2
taxable entities in the countries AR E HE A R E
concerned (Note) A (fisE) 78,172 101,447
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR 2 s o 2
for tax purpose 3,284 5,558
Tax effect of income not taxable BRI e 2 BT 52
for tax purpose (44,593) (56,223)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not B BT ARER 2 I E R
recognised (6,648) (9,408)
Over provision in respect of prior years B FEERERE (1,542) (3,890)
Deferred tax liabilities on undistributed BEATBEARENSENBARZ
earnings of the PRC and Taiwan subsidiaries K72 REF 7 IREFIE B & 12,677 10,330
Income tax expense for the year RNEFFEFREHIE T 41,350 47814

Note: As the Group operates in several different tax jurisdictions, separate
reconciliations using the domestic tax rate in each individual tax jurisdiction

have been aggregated and presented.

P e

PRI 7S R (B 2 {8 S [R) B0 715 B A A o A

R - B AR (B (8 5 TS Bl A R
BB R EH 2 BIHRESHILE

5]
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HE_Z—+E+-_A=+—HIFE

9. Profit for the Year 9. KEEGF
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Profit for the year has been arrived at REFEHMNDHR (FEA) TIEIE -
after charging (crediting):
Staff costs: BTHKA :
Directors'emoluments (note 10) EE=Me (FizE10) 5,520 5323
Other staff salaries and allowances Hth B THrEM K28 79,690 89,505
Retirement benefits scheme contributions, BRINERETEIHEEK -
excluding directors: TEEES
— defined contribution plans (note 23 (b)) — EREHFETE (HiE230)) 16,197 14,710
~ defined benefit plan (note 23 (a)) — EFEEAETE (KisE23(@) 116 261
Total staff costs BT AN 101,523 109,799
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #)2 &= MRETE 20,587 22,440
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense O R BRI S 2 FERK AR 79,819 108,891
Release of prepaid lease payments BOoaRALthHAER 1,180 1,180
Auditor’s remuneration = AN N & 3,367 2,999
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - WER&E 2 EE
plant and equipment 191 1,776
Compensation income arising for E 4% 1 F70 & ek i 2= A A 1B W as
termination of a tenancy agreement - (19,094)
Research and development costs TFEE A 2,806 2,464
Allowance (reversal of allowance) for B F AR S (BERm)
trade receivables 3,457 414)
Allowance for obsolete inventories, REFERE GIAEERLR)
included in cost of sales 1,737 327
Advertising and promotion expenses BEs MHEERY 13,510 28,781
Net exchange loss b 5 B 15 EE 3,713 3,110
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_ZT—+E+-_RA=+—HIFE

10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 10. EERFETHAEME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven (2016: eight) EfRESER (ZE—XRF: \&) &
directors and the chief executive were as follows: ERFETHRABZMET
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_Z—tH+-A=+t—HLEE
Directors
i
Mr. Chief
Dr.SU Dr.SU HSIEH Total ~ Executive
DrTSAI  Mr.LEE Chien- Sh- Mr.CHEN Mr.LU Pang- directors’  Mr.HSIAO Total
YenYu  MingTa Cheng Hsyu Ruey-Long Chi-Chant Chang emoluments Wen-Chung 217
Thes

BAT  ME OREM  OERR MER EEE  BME EEME B 46
Bt %% Bt Br  %& %E %% BF  RE CR-tf
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$000
TRn TEn TER TR TEr TER TEn  TEr TR TER

Fees ik 1,000 - 1,250 1,250 240 240 240 4220 1330 5,550
Other emoluments Ao
Salaries and other benefts B¢ RAMEH - 565 25 25 - - -1 1580 2715
Contributions to retirement RINERIEEIE
benefits scheme % 55 4 4 - - - 165 85 250
Total emoluments MowsE 1,024 620 1,578 1,578 240 240 240 5520 2,995 8,515
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE_ZT—RF+_A=1T—RHLFE
Directors
£
Mr, Chief
Dr.SU Dr.SU Mr. Mr. HSIEH Total  Executive
Dr. TSI Mr LEE Chien- Sh- CHEN YANG Mr.LU Pang-  directors M HSIAO Total
YenYu  MingTa (Cheng Hsyu Ruey-long  Tze-Kaing  Chi-Chant (Chang emoluments  Wen-Chung 2016
| il
BRI ME BRI RR OMBR BT EEE #AE ESMe AU k)
f§t ik f§+ A i 4 Kk ik & Rt 230

HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOD  HKSOOD  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKSO0D  HKS000  HKSOO  HKSO00
TR T Tér TR TEr TAr TR TEr  TEr  TAn  TEn

(Note i) (Note )

(i) (&)
Fees we 1000 - 1250 1250 20 0 20 0 400 499 4719
Other emoluments Efrdie
Salaries and other benefits 4 REM1EA - n 30 30 - = = - %) 1806 2738
Contributions toretirement R IR4EFI
benefits scherme HEe i 5 49 49 - - - - 17 47 218
Total emoluments et 10 380 1601 1601 0 0 20 0 5303 2135 7675
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE

10.

128

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments

(Continued)
Notes:

(i) Mr. LU Chi-Chant was appointed as a director of the Company on 18
December 2015.

(i) Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing resigned as a director of the Company on 1 February
2016.

Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors are entitled to a
management bonus aggregately not exceeding 15% of the audited
consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company in respect of
that financial year of the Group, as recommended by the Remuneration
Committee.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as an

inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.
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11.

12.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Employees’ Emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, three
(2016: four) were directors and the chief executives of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in note 10 above. The
emoluments of the remaining two (2016: one) individuals were as follows:

11.

e R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-F L T-A=+ BLEE

EEME
AEBRERRFTMALFR  HP=4£
—ERFNE) BAAREERE
BITBRAE ' HEZHESFHFBER LEX
MIEE10HE - B TWE (ZT— R F:
—%) ATZBEWT -

2017 2016
—B—tF —ZRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Salaries and other benefits e REMER 2,461 1,211
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme  3RKEFIET 23k 111 39
2,572 1,250
The emoluments of the two (2016: one) individuals were within the MEZ (ZE—RF: —F) xeHAL
following bands: 2N FATEE :
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
Headcount Headcount
AE AE
HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T — 1,500,000/ 7T 2 1
Earnings Per Share 12. BREF

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the owners
of the Company is based on the profit attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$105,388,000 (2016: HK$148,403,000) and
on the number of 2,002,100,932 (2016: 2,002,100,932) ordinary shares of
the Company in issue during the year.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for 2017 and 2016 does
not assume the exercise of the Company’s share options because the
exercise price of those options was higher than the average market prices
in both years.

RRARHEE ABMEBRERZF THIRE
R RER A FE(L S F49105,388,00078
7T (ZZ— 754 : 148,403,0008 7T) MF
A A A E 21T E @A E2,002,100,932%
ZZT N4 2,002,100,9320%) #tHE -

R-ZE—EFR-_FT—RF Sk#s
Bzt B ERER AR EEREET
® REAZEBREZTEESNN
EEE 2 FAME -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-ZT—+tF+-A=+—RHILFE

13. Dividends 13. RE
2017 2016
—E—tF —ERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER BT
Dividends recognised as distribution FAERADIRZIRE
during the year:
Interim dividend, paid — HK$0.0171 per share BRI EARE — —F—+4F
for 2017 (2016: HK$0.0410 per BRR001718TT (ZT—RF :
share for 2016) ZE—NFFR004105%57T) 34,236 82,086
Special interim dividend, paid — BRI B S — — T —+ 4
HK$0.0054 per share for 2017 HR%0.00548 7T (ZF—7R4F ¢
(2016: HK$0.0250 per share for 2016) ZE—NFER00250%T) 10,811 50,053
Final dividend, paid — HK$0.0327 per share BIRNARERE — —ZF—XRF
for 2016 (2016: HK$0.0292 per BR003278TT (ZE—7R45F ¢
share for 2015) ZE-hFFR00292ETT) 65,469 58461
Special final dividend, paid — BRI RIREIRE — ZF—RF
HK$0.025 per share for 2016 (2016: nil) FH00258TT (2T —/NF « &) 50,052 =
160,568 190,600

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2017 of HK$0.0335 per share (2016: a final
dividend of HK$0.0327 per share and a special final dividend of HK$0.025
per share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2016), amounting to
HK$67,070,381 (2016: HK$65,468,700 and HKS$50,052,523, respectively) in
aggregate has been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval
by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14. Investment Properties

e R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-F L T-A=+ BLEE

14. REWE

HKS$'000

FAT
FAIR VALUE NFE
At 1 January 2016 RZE—RF—H—H 6,524
Exchange realignment PE 5 R 140
Increase in fair value recognised in profit WA HER < A FEE 532
At 31 December 2016 RZT—RF+-H=+—H 7,196
Exchange realignment [E 5, % 697
At 31 December 2017 R_ZE—+F+_-_HA=+—H 7,893

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December 2017
and 2016 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on
those dates by Euro-Asia Real Estate Appraisers Firm, an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected with the Group. Euro-Asia
Real Estate Appraisers Firm is a member of the Institute of Valuers, and has
appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. The valuation was arrived at using the
direct comparison approach by reference to market evidence of recent
transaction prices for similar properties in the similar locations and under
the similar conditions.

AEBZRENER-_ZE—LFR=-F
—NF+—A=+—RHBZAFE " Tk
BRI T E)EL ERES 5T (RS
EWmEE B EREEMER)
it B E#E T 2 EFTE TS o B
THEGEMEE EBMAGEMNSS
(Institute of Valuers) @ 8 » EE#HAEE
Bt LM A R LA M= SR 2
ZEEE o BRAMAENFERAEELES
W2 ZF U E (Mo Rk R K EAR
/) 2R SEEMSEREFL -
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e SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE

14. Investment Properties (Continued)

The carrying value of investment properties shown above is situated on

freehold land in Taiwan.

14. REWE (8)

A=

iR EME (FREEW EXAR) 2R
KA o

Fair value

hierarchy Valuation technique
AVE

EREW  (EERE

Significant unobservable
input(s)

IETTEBEZBARE

Relationship of unobservable
input(s) to fair value
AR 2B AR

BNV EZBE

Level 3 Direct comparison method
=M and income method

BEERLBREEE

The key inputs are:

TERABIER

1) Capitalisation rate;

2) Monthly rent; and

3) Price per square metre
) BRMER:

2 AM: R

3 BFIKER
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Capitalisation rate, taking into account
of the capitalisation of rental income
potential nature of the property,
prevailing market condition
BEREER S MBERTRTYRZE
R RREENERNME

Monthly rent, using direct market
comparable and taking into account of
age, location and individual factors such
as road frontage, size of property and
layout/design of the base level

A REETSAILL BRI R
B EREREE - thn—121
BREEE  MERBRGRE 2

Price per square metre, using market
direct comparable and taking into
account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of
property, etc. of the base level
BYHORER  EREETSAILE
Bt ML E R EAMERE S - than
—IRNBREE WEEES

The higher the capitalisation rate,
the lower the fair value

BERfeRfs - A HEBE

The higher the monthly rent, the
higher the fair value

AMEE  AFEES

The higher the price per square
metre, the higher the fair value

YK ERES - A FHERES



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERERM T

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_ZT—+E+-_RA=+—HIFE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. 1% - BERRE
Furniture,
Freehold Leasehold Motor fixturesand  Construction
land  Buildings improvements  Machinery vehicles  equipment in progress Total
KAKE Ba-
1 BT HENERE HBERES RE  KERRE W EEIR At
HKS'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK000
Thr  Thx TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT  Thx
cosT A
At 1 January 2016 RN
—A—-H 18386 174,567 50827 40270 2967 04,392 9,090 360499
Exchange realignment  [E 3 3§% (2474) (7.344) (1.277) (2418) (26) (2851) (400)  (16,790)
Additions R - 4514 5732 1,744 180 2970 3890 19,030
Disposals e = = (767) (336) (742) (1,667) (1,235) (4.747)
Transfer i - - 1,149 624 - 5809 (758) -
At31December 2016  MZE—EF
TZA=+-AH 15912 171737 55,664 39884 2379 68653 3763 35799
Bichange realignment X 355 1543 13512 4735 3113 210 5,661 535 29309
Additions 7 - 463 587 920 = 7,302 23018 3229
Disposals e - - (612) (378) (237) (999) - (2222
Transfer b = = - = = 3612 (3612) =
At31 December 2017 MZZ—+F
+-A=1-H 17455 185712 60,374 43539 2352 84,233 23,704 417,369
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2016 RZZ—RE
—A—-H = 65,762 38309 21378 1315 46,384 - 173,148
Exchange realignment [ 1% - (3761) (1271) (1,279 2) (1,839) - (8,167)
Provided for the year EREE - 5303 6011 3205 337 7,544 - 2440
Eliminated on disposals R ER s - - (741) (318) (521) (1.391) - (2971)
At31 December 2016 RZZE—E
+-A=t-H = 67324 42,308 23010 1,109 50,699 = 184450
Exchange realignment ~ FE X A% - 5382 4042 1851 100 4378 - 15753
Provided for the year EREE - 5586 4748 3412 337 6,504 - 20587
Eliminated on disposals A HER#iE = - (612) (331) (225) (863) = (2031)
At31 December 2017 MZE—+%F
+-A=t-H = 78292 50486 27942 1321 60,718 - 218759
CARRYING VALUES REE
At31 December 2017 MZE—+F
+-A=1-H 17455 107420 9888 15597 1,031 23515 23,704 198610
At31December 2016 MZE—F
+=R=t-H 15912 104413 13356 16,874 1270 17954 3,763 173542
BAXEMREEARAR —T—tFF% 133



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERRM T

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+E+-_A=+—HIFE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 15. ¥1% - BMERRE @)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than Lt BMERRHER (EFEIR
construction in progress and freehold land, are depreciated on a straight- ROK AR THBRIN) HEREERE
line basis at the following rates per annum: ATNERFE :
Buildings 40 years ¥ 40%F
Leasehold improvements The shorter of the unexpired period HEMHEEE RIE M EF gk fhEt
of the lease and estimated AIfEAEHIRE 10
useful life of 3 to 10 years (AE5E & A2E)
Machinery 5-10 years RS R e Es 5—10%F
Motor vehicles 3 -5 years B 3— 54
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2 — 15 years RE - KERHZE 2—15F
16. Prepaid Lease Payments 16. BT EER
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FTHEx FHT

The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise A&z 8 A+ HAEKBE

leasehold land rights in the PRC under FAFR B A BEAR H5 R B -3 5 FR 4

medium-term land use rights A2 ME T Ak 53,680 49,423
Analysed for reporting purposes as: TLERSRAS AT T -

Non-current asset JEmBNEE 52,431 48296

Current asset mENEE 1,249 1127

53,680 49423
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For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to an
individual cash-generating unit (CGU), namely sale of cosmetic products
in the PRC CGU. The carrying amounts of goodwill as at 31 December
2017 and 2016 are allocated to this CGU.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based on a
value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by the management covering a five-year
period assuming no growth and cash flows over five years using a growth
rate of 0% and a discount rate of 8.6% (2016: 7.9%). Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which include budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation
is based on the unit's past performance and the management’s
expectations for the market development. The management believes that
any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount of this unit to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of this unit.

- e : = 2 f/’
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_ZT—+tF+_A=1+—"HLFE
17. Goodwill 17. BHE
HK$'000
FHT
COST AR
At 1 January 2016 NZE—"F—H—H 30,238
Exchange realignment b 5, B (1,536)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—FRF+-_A=+—H 28,702
Exchange realignment kS 1,585
At 31 December 2017 N—F—+EF=+-_HF=+—H 30,287
IMPAIRMENT VEREN
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 and N—E—RF—H—H -
31 December 2017 —E—RNEt+-A=+—HFK
—E—+tF+=ZA=+—H 3,192
CARRYING VALUES BRME(E
At 31 December 2017 N—_E—+F+-_A=+—H 27,095
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF+=-_A=+—H 25,510

REARNS  BECEIRERT
ReEL BN CREELEM) - RS
BAEHEXTERIREELEM
R-B—+tFR-_FB-—RF+-A=+
—BZAEREEDSRELRSES
B o

ReEABM A WE S EREREE
STEETE - ZTEAXNTREEEEN
HEZ ATV EEETRRESEER
FREREBNFERATHE R R KRS6%IHR
R(ZE—NEFE 7902 H L RETEA
s - FAEBEAESEAZEMES
BEEGEHRERA S REERE (B
TEEHEERENEX) BREGTIEES
EEBN s BARRAEEBESMSE
BoEHEE EEERE AWNZE
BRERZEMEEA ST E
HeEESUvEmeEBRLHIESE
Az AU EI A EE o

BAXEYRRERAT —T—LFFH 135



i -

: : = = -\'\.
s -y
_.--"_Z-"" e T
" i T =
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e ERRM T

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+E+-_A=+—HIFE

18. Inventories 18. &

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$'000 HKS'000
FHExT Tt
Raw materials ERE 51,477 37,109
Finished goods Uk 44,081 22,690
95,558 59,799
Allowance for obsolete inventories MREFEREE (10,481) (9,957)
85,077 49842

19. Trade and Other Receivables 19. ES R HAMEWERR
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$'000 HKS'000
FExT T
Trade receivables Z SRR 103,240 74,448
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B REREE (5,089) (1,476)
98,151 72,972
Prepayments SEANENE] 7,522 6,063
Other receivables E b pE IR TR 3,616 5,593
Total trade and other receivables B 5 ME A R BR B RE 109,289 84,628
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)
The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 120 days (2016: 30 to
60 days) to its trade customers. The credit period provided to customers
can vary based on a number of factors including the customer’s credit
profile and sales promotion policy. The aging analysis of trade receivables
net of allowance for doubtful debts presented based on the date of
delivery of goods at the end of the reporting period as follows:

e R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-F L T-A=+ BLEE

19. EZ R EMEBEWERR (&)

AEBLETHEZEFFH308E1208
ZEEH(ZF—RF :308=60R8) °
RHBEPZEEHIKEZEAZ (&
BRPZERMRRREHEBER) MB A
TE - AREHBEEER REERH
FEEN2EHEKER (ENRRE
BE) BRI DITAT

2017 2016
—E—+tF T —RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Aging: ARER -
Within credit period ZEEHR 78,503 57218
Over credit period but less than 180 days BIEEEEEI80HRN 6,783 15,754
Over 180 days HiE180H 12,865 -
98,151 72,972

Included in the Group's receivable balances are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$19,648,000 (2016: HK$15,754,000) which are past
due as at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The Group hold a collateral for a balance of HK$6,967,000
(2016: nil).

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

AEEBREKREREHBELEERAE
19,648,000/ 7T (=& — 754 : 15,754,000
BIL) RARSHHE@BNER - &
SEWERHERESBELRE - K&
Bt 45 #46,967,0008 7T (ZF — 7N & -
=) AR -

EEMENFTRENE Z R R R

A L
H< -

2017 2016
B+ —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET BT

Aging: ARES
Over credit period but less than 180 days RAEEHEEI180EN 6,783 15,754
Over 180 days HiB180H 12,865 -
19,648 15,754
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e ERRM T

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-ZT—+tF+-A=+—RHILFE

19. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 19. ES R HMBWERR (&)
The directors of the Company assessed the credit quality of those debtors RARABEFFERESEB ANTBA
that the balances are past due by reviewing their financial position, the A BERERE M ERT R ELD
past repayment record and the experience on any recent history of TRITEEENEEL R  RA%AH
default. The amounts are considered recoverable. EEREIEE ] A2 B o
Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an internal credit Tﬁ RNEMFE LA - ANEBEFAASME
system to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines ERGHBEERT PN EEERETHGE
credit limits by customer. Limits to customers are reviewed regularly. The WEEEEEAREE ASEBEHEFH
majority of the trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired HEETERES - AEHRAHATR
have no history of defaulting on repayments. BENE SEWERFRETEITEERN
B o
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts REEBRBERD
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Balance at the beginning of the year FHHRER 1,476 6,753
Amounts recovered during the year FRYEEEE (589) (1364)
Allowance on receivables FEW R SR 4,046 950
Amounts written off as uncollectible W sE AT B Y BB IE (115) (4,565)
Exchange realignment PE 5 FH%E 271 (298)
Balance at the end of the year FRERER 5,089 1476
Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired REEBEOIEETE TSR @ RR
trade receivables with an aggregate balance of HK$5,089,000 (2016: B8 Z FE W R R 2 48 45 #2 2L 515,089,000
HK$1,476,000), which have been identified with financial difficulties. e <
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20. Pledged Bank Deposits/Bank Balances and Cash

21.

In 2015, the Group signed a guarantee agreement and placed bank
deposits with China Merchants Bank of China (“CMBC"), in order for
CMBC to issue guarantee letters to Fengxian government for the Group's
acquisition of the land use right. The pledged bank deposits will be
released upon the expirations of the guarantee letters.

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of the pledged bank
deposits was RMB6,109,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$7,338,000),
which will be released in 2018.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's bank deposits of United States
Dollars (“USS") 536,000 (2016: US$510,000) (equivalent to approximately
HK$4,185,000 (2016: HK$3,958,000)) was denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the relevant group entity.

e R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-F L T-A=+ BLEE

20 BHEBRITER RITEF

Bz

R-ZF—0F AKERBEELHER
REPBEABRT ([HERT)) FF]R
EEMARITERELSERARERD
RITAFERBTFAHOFRE - SRR
TSRS AR B B 12 AR B 8 -

R=ZZE—tF+=-A=+—8  EFR
1717 5 R 18 23 A R #6,109,0007T (48
B R #97,338000870) BR =T —N\F
FRBR IR -

RZBE—+t&F+_A=+—"8 €85
536,000 70 (=& — 734 : 510,000% 7T
(IZE7T])) (A8 & M 494,185,000/ 7T (=
T — N 1 3,958,0008 L)) 2 AEBEIR

TR DEREBEEEREEEIN
N BHEEETHE -
Trade and Other Payables 21. EZRHEMENIERR
2017 2016
—B—tF —ZRF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FHET
Trade payables B SRR 21,521 20,380
Deposits from customers XFEHE 25,934 26,901
Other tax payables H e B¢ 18 14,981 25,654
Accruals ANE=4:i 21,483 48914
Other payables H A FERTARFR 7,363 9,849
Total trade and other payables B 5 REAMEMNERRETE 91,282 132,198
BAZEYREERAR ZZT—tFFH 139
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e VI RAR MR

Ny =|

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE

21.

22,

140

Trade and Other Payables (Continued)
The following is an aging analysis of trade payables presented based on
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

21. ESREMENSER @
RIBEHREEEE  RREAMHES
52 B S REMEXEBAINMT o

2017 2016

—B—tF —ZRF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT T

Within 90 days 90HE K 21,123 20,221
91 days to 365 days 91HZ365H 18 215
Over 365 days HE365H 380 444
21,521 20,880

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days. The Group
has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables
are settled within the credit timeframe.

BEEmZVPHEEHROR - AEHE
EFEHBRARERBEE - AERAAE
M ERFANEERRAEN -

Deferred Income 22. RIEWR &=
2017 2016
ZBE—tF T RF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Prepaid treatment fees TANEREE 5,981 6,223

Deferred income represents the receipts via credit cards, cheques and
cash from sales of beauty services to customers and is recognised in the
profit or loss once the services to the customers are provided.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23. Retirement Benefits Plans

(a)

Defined benefit plan

The Group's Taiwan subsidiaries participate in a central pension
scheme providing benefits to certain employees in accordance
with the Labour Standards Law (as amended) in Taiwan. The Group
has an obligation to ensure that there are sufficient funds in the
scheme to pay the benefits earned. The Group currently contributes
at 2% of the total salaries as determined and approved by the
relevant government authorities. Under the scheme, the employees
are entitled to retirement benefits equal to two months' salary for
each year of service for the first 15 years and one month’s salary for
each year of service following the 15 years, but not more than 45
months’ salary in aggregate on the attainment age of 60. No other
post-retirement benefits are provided.

The Group’s net obligation in respect of the pension scheme
is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine the
present value, and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method. An actuarial valuation as at 31 December
2017 and 2016 was carried out by a qualified staff member of
PricewaterhouseCoopers Taiwan, who is a member of The Actuarial
Institute of the Republic of China. The actuarial valuation indicates
that the Group's obligations under this defined benefit retirement
scheme are 2% (2016: 2%) covered by the deposits paid with the
Bank of Taiwan, Ltd.

e TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE-T tHF+-A=1T"BLFE

23. RKEFEHE

(a)

BAXEYREERAT

BN
AEERENBARRESES
EBEE (RER]) 2P REBARE
& UAETRERERERER - K
SEEETRREMAIAEERTH
Be  BAXMNEERBAFAEZE
M o NEBIRIZF S B E2%IEH
HH - AL XA BERRNERE
ERALE - RIBEBREFE - BEH
ZFRZEARBAT : RE15ER
BEE  8FAEEHEEXMEHA
e RINER - R E1SERSF
Bz#& BFAZFHEHAEFR—E
A& 2 BRKEH - 1605k FT
BRKBEHNE X TSHBB45E A F
T o NGB E IR R EARAK
®&@H -

AEBURAS B MAIE 2B
R DiREBRE BT HRE
AR M RER P 1§ 2 B 1R & MR
THEAE  BARMNSRRNETE
BE  YeHBREAEEEZR
FE - ERtERAERBER
R EMARNRAEFE - R
B—t+HEE_F-—ARFT-_H=+
—HZBEREDHERBE SF

FMEHMzABERETET  HA
TERERESEEE - LUlEE
HERR  AEEERATE RSN
BRRETEIT 2 EH /2% (ZF—X
F:2%) AR TFRERITAR
RAZFRZN

—ZT—EFFR 14



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VI RAR MR

Ny =|

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE

23.

142

Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued)
(a) Defined benefit plan (Continued)
(i) The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the

23. RIRBERIFHE (&)
(a) THEEBFIE (2)
() FEBITHEEGEERSFERY

actuarial valuations were as follows: FERKRMT :
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
Discount rate BhIR =& 1.10% 1.10%
Expected return on plan assets HEIEE 2 BR[O 1.10% 1.10%
Expected rate of salary increases AR S e E 2.00% 2.00%

The actuarial valuation showed that the market value of plan
assets was HK$7,945,000 (2016: HK$7,037,000).

(i) Amounts recognised in profit or loss in respect of the defined

BEEEERTEEEZT
B /47,945,000 7T (ZZF—7<
£ 1 7,037,000/7T) °

iy EREBERRPERZIEER

benefit plans are as follows: FIETEISREAT -
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FAT
Current service cost I8 B AR TS AR AN 125 125
Interest on obligations (v sy 131 232
Expected return on plan assets 2B E 2 AR (83) (5)
173 352
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERERM T

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_ZT—+E+-_RA=+—HIFE

23. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued) 23. RARERFE @)
(@) Defined benefit plan (Continued) (a) EHRBEAE (B
(i) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive (expense) (i EREMEZE (AX) WamEF
income in respect of the defined benefit plans are as follows: R EHEATE SREM
T

2017 2016

—E—+F ZE—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHIT

Remeasurement on the net defined ~ E¥ist = FE /@M B EFE ¢
benefit liability:

— Actuarial (loss) gain arising from — EFTEEAZEE (BE)
remeasurement hé (1,089) 715
~ Expected return on plan assets — FrEIEE 2 TEEm R (37) =
(1,126) 715
(iv)  The amounts included in the consolidated statement of (iv) BiFAZREMBAKRFERZ
financial position arising from the Group's obligations in ERBHFTEEELE 2 RNE
respect of its defined benefit plans are as follows: BERSREAT ¢
2017 2016
—E—t5F —E—RF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FExT FAT
Present value of funded defined B ERENER 2 RE
benefit obligations 13,569 11,138
Fair value of plan assets TEIBECATE (7,945) (7,037)
Net liability arising from defined ERENEREEFRE
benefit obligations 5,624 4,101
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e ERRM T

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-ZT—+tF+-A=+—RHILFE

23. BIRERGFE @)

23. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued)

144

(@) Defined benefit plan (Continued) (a) EHRBEAE (B
(v} Movements in the present value of the defined benefit v) AEETFBEIAGEHEREZ
obligations in the current year were as follows: FEmT

2017 2016

—E—+F —ERF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

At 1 January W—H—H 11,138 12,579

Current service cost I8 B AR TS AR AN 125 125

Interest on obligations BEEFE 131 232
Benefits paid BfEF - (1,363)
Actuarial loss (gain) BEEE (W) 1,089 (715)

Exchange differences on foreign plans /85Nt EIME X =58 1,086 280

At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—H~ 13,569 11,138

(vi)

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current

V) AEEHEAEATEZES

year were as follows: E)) NN
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
At 1 January R—H—B8 7,037 247
Contributions from the employer BEH 173 6,798
Expected return on plan assets FTEIE E 2 TEHAE 83 5
Actuarial loss EEEE (37) =
Exchange differences on foreign plans  J@9Nat2IFE 5 =48 689 (13)
At 31 December B+=—A=+—H 7,945 7,037
Actual return on plan assets FTEIE E 2 BRR B 47 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued)
Defined benefit plan (Continued)

(a)

(vi)

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current
year were as follows: (Continued)

The directors’ assessment of the expected return is based on
historical return trends and analysts’ predictions of the market
for the assets in the next twelve months.

The major categories of plan assets, and the percentage of
the fair value at the end of the reporting period for each
category are as follows:

e TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_ZT—+tH&+_A=1t—HUSFE

23. RIRERFHE (&)
(a) TEEBFIE (2)

(vi)

NEEHEEEAFEZE
g : ()

E=MERBEHRFE IR
BERERBRELZROTEY
BEMSART —EAZE
BUHETT

STEIEE 2 EZHAIA KRR
WEMMEEE RS ERLE
BEEATEZAS LN
T~

2017 2016

—E—+tF ZE—RF

% %

Deposits with financial institutions B TS HIE T TR 17.97 1804
Short term bills ya Rk 5.36 274
Stocks ah) 9.26 10,09
Bonds -t 11.73 12.00
Others HAith 55.68 57.13
100.00 100.00
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23. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued)
Defined benefit plan (Continued)

146

(a)

(vi)

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current
year were as follows: (Continued)

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination
of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected
salary increase. The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on reasonably possible changes of the
respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting
period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

- If the discount rate is 100 basis points higher (lower),
the defined benefit obligation would decrease by
HK$913,000 (increase by HK$1,046,000).

- If the expected salary growth increases (decreases) by
1%, the defined benefit obligation would increase by
HK$912,000 (decrease by HK$817,000).

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be
representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions
would occur in isolation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the
present value of the defined benefit obligation has been
calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end
of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in
calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used
in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.
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23. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued)

(b)
()

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the HK MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme under the
Labour Standards Law (as amended) in Taiwan (the “TW MPF
Scheme”). The HK MPF scheme and the TW MPF Scheme
are defined contribution retirement schemes administered
by independent trustees. Under the HK MPF scheme and
TW MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% and
6%, respectively, of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 (with
effect from 1 June 2014) for the HK MPF Scheme while there
is no cap to monthly income under the TW MPF Scheme.
Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

e TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
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23. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued)

148

(b)

Defined contribution plans (Continued)

(i)

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of the state-managed retirement benefit plan
operated by the PRC government. As stipulated by the
regulations of the PRC, these relevant subsidiaries participate
in various defined contribution retirement plans organised by
the relevant authorities for its PRC employees. The employees
are entitled to retirement pension calculated with reference
to their basic salaries on retirement and their length of
service in accordance with the relevant government
regulations. The PRC government is responsible for the
pension liabilities to these retired staff. The Group is required
to make contributions to the retirement plans which are
calculated based on certain prescribed rates and the salaries,
bonuses and certain allowances of its PRC employees. The
Group has no other material obligations for the payment of
pension benefits associated with these plans beyond the
annual contributions described above.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$16,305,000 (2016:

HKS$14,790,000) represents contributions paid on payable to these

schemes by the Group in respect of the current accounting period.
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24. Share Capital

25.

e R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-F L T-A=+ BLEE

24, R

Number
of shares Share capital
RGHE [N
HKS$'000
FAT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FHhg0 BT 2 Emk
Authorised: JETE
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 and RZZE—R"F—HA—Q1 "
31 December 2017 ZE—ARFTZA=tT—HK
—T—+F+-A=+—H 4,000,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 and RZE—RF—H—H"
31 December 2017 “E-RFTA=t—HRK
—E—+F+-_HA=+—H 2,002,100,932 200,210

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the shareholders on 11
March 2002, the Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Old
Scheme”) for the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors
and eligible employees. Under the Old Scheme, the Company may grant
options to full-time employees (including executive and non-executive
Directors) of the Company or its subsidiaries to subscribe for the shares
at a consideration of HK$1 for each lot of share options granted. Options
granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of grant. The Old
Scheme will remain valid for a period of 10 years commencing on 11
March 2002.

A new share option scheme (“New Scheme”) with terms exactly the same
as the Old Scheme with different exercisable periods was approved at the
Annual General Meeting ("AGM") on 13 May 2011. Upon the approval of
the New Scheme, the amended Old Scheme was terminated at the AGM
on 13 May 2011.

25.

AR E
BEBRRRA-_ZTZE_F=A+—HES8
ZEMRBR  ARBRMAT —EHRRK
BT ([E&E)) TZEMERIE
HEHTEERAERES - BEES
g AREAAAABRENBARZ
2BES (BERTESRIERNITES)
BREAIRERDZRRE  SHIBLER
BEZREBIAT - AT HERE
B BB ET28 A R IR 2 RRRAE o
Bz ARBE 2T _F=At+—
BiAEM - AEA+F -

RICE——FHEA+T=ZARTZERRE
FAE (RRBFAE]) £ BRIE
ey R RBCERT &I ([37ET81)) - #atdlz
R BB ES & 2 R 2 HEHETTE S
AR o pFTaT B ERER - NAFITR
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25. Share Option Scheme (Continued)
Options granted under the New Scheme may be exercised during such
period as would be determined by the board of directors of the Company
(the “Board”) and notified to each grantee upon grant of the option, but in
any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the option. The
subscription price for shares under the New Scheme may be determined
by the Board at its absolute discretion but in any event will not be less
than the higher of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the option,
which must be a business day; and (b) the average of the closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant

option.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the New Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be issued in
respect of which options granted and may be granted to any individual in
any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. Options granted to substantial shareholders or independent
non-executive directors in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of such grant in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital in
issue or with an aggregate value in excess of HKS5 million based on the
closing price of the shares at the date of each grant must be approved in
advance by the Company’s shareholders.
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Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The Company may grant share options under the New Scheme to
specified participants over and above the scheme mandate limit or the
refreshed scheme mandate limit referred to above subject to shareholders’
approval in general meetings and the issue of a circular.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the New
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company (or the subsidiary) must
not exceed 30% of the relevant class of securities of the Company (or the
subsidiary) in issue from time to time. No options may be granted under
any schemes of the Company (or the subsidiary) if this will result in the
limit being exceeded.

25.

e R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2017
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
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26. Deferred Taxation

26. ELERIE

The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised and
movements thereon during the current or prior years:

AERIBEFERRB L TERLTHREA
BE (BR) UREZEFHEHIIMT

Undistributed
Allowance Revaluation Other  earnings of
forbadand  Allowance of Defined  Unrealised  short-term  the PRCand
doubtful for  investment benefit profitson  temporary overseas
debts  inventories  properties liability ~ inventories differences  subsidiaries Total
HE AR
RgHH
Bff it X85 EfEH WELFZ
REERE HEEGE 0 REWE  BAEE  FEERN ENEE  ROREW @t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TaT TAT TAT TAT TAT THT THT TAT
At1 January 2016 RZZ—rE
-A-A 1688 3134 1109 20% 1647 91 (10017) 608
Exchange realignment i HE (74 (181) 2 62 (108 3 130 (136
(Charge) creditto profitorloss 1283 (H18) A (1.249) (291 (90) (1461) 970 2032 (10330) (10415)
amnings distrbuted EAIREN - - - - - - 9257 9257
At 31 December 2016 RZE—rE
+-A=t-H 369 2662 1051 697 2509 2986 (10960) (686)
Eichange realignment BHRE 39 0 I 69 146 (1) (1,089 (591)
Credit (charge) to profitorloss FEESREFA
(40B) 864 (34 - 19 (4%9) (3,606) (12677) (16069
Earnings distributed EARER - - - - - - 11483 11483
At31 December 2017 REE—+4F
+-A=1+-H 1272 252 1093 9% 2157 (621) (13.242) (5863)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$44,057,000 (2016: HK$83,696,000) available to offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised of such
tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

Deferred taxation has been provided in full in respect of the undistributed
earnings of the Group’s PRC and overseas subsidiaries arising since 1
January 2008 as the directors consider that such earnings are estimated to
be distributable in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax has been provided
for in respect of the temporary differences attributable to such profits

amounting to approximately HK$116,263,000 (2016: HK$144,645,000).
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BHE-Z—+tF+-A=1T—HILFE

27. Operating Leases 27. REHY
The Group as lessee REBIERAEBEA
During the year, the Group made rental payments for office and store FRN - AEERBSEHARBABRR
premises under operating leases as follows: EREHMEHNHESAT
2017 2016
—E—tF ZERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Minimum lease payments IR S 17,485 16,683
Contingent rental payments ARSI 9,015 7,110
26,500 23,793
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for RBESELEER - NREBRET A
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases SHREHA 2 B KBEN I 2 AIE
which fall due as follows: REBIEERAT -
2017 2016
—B—tF —ZRF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET T
Within one year —FR 20,038 19,975
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEERF (BREEEMSE) 10,975 23,992
Over five years BimhF 412 -
31,425 43,967
The above lease commitments only include commitments for basic LA EAREERFEEANNR S HKIE -
rentals, and do not include commitments for contingent rental payable, WABIEREMN AR AIE (I0E
if any, when the amounts are determined by applying a percentage of RIEEAE A ¥mE Ao ETES
turnover of the respective leases, as it is not possible to determine in =) - RE AN fLTE LB T AR
advance the amount of such contingent rentals. S 7L o
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e SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE

27. Operating Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessor
Properties and equipment

Properties and equipment rental income earned during the year was
HK$2,075,000 (2016: HK$2,294,000), and the outgoings was HK$ 1,488,000
(2016: HKS$1,575,000) for renting properties and equipment. All of the
properties and equipment have committed tenants for the next one to

five years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants
for the following future minimum lease payments:

27. BEHY (&)
REBEABEA
E VL L

FRNRIFGzMERZERS KT A
2,075,000/ 70 (ZZ — 754 2,294,000/
TL) - HEWHERFRER Y A1,488,000%
T (ZZT— 754 1,575,000 7T) « A&

BZRANERZBEBRRR-—ERFE

BEMEAIM -

RBEHHEEER - AEBEEBEP 2R
<z BREEBENTET

2017 2016
—E—+F ZT—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHT
Within one year — &R 1,028 2137
In the second year to fifth year inclusive FEEFRF (RIEEREME) 1,352 1,641
Over five years b ichak: 859 1393
3,239 5171
28. Capital Commitments 28. EXREIE
2017 2016
—E—+E ZT—RF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FER T
Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition & 5] #AMB KRR A B FSERE
of property, plant and equipment BEBBMUEYE
contracted for but not provided BB K& 2 BRI
in the consolidated financial statements 34,088 2,538
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e R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-F L T-A=+ BLEE

29. BERBBALIRE 2HE

During the year, the Group had significant transactions with related

parties, which are also deemed to be connected parties pursuant to the

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange. The

significant transactions with these parties during the year are as follows:

(a)

Transactions

(i)

Connected parties

FRAREGEBEBADTETEAR
5 o REBEMIAES EMRAZHRE
ERBABALTTRESBEEAL  F
N ARBREZFALTETZERR
ST :

(@) X5H
(i) EBEEAL

2017 2016
—E—tF —BNEF
Name of company Nature of transactions HK$’000 HKS$'000
DEREW ReME FRT FHET
Companies controlled by individuals who collectively
have joint control over the Company’s ultimate holding
company and are also executive directors
of the Company:
£ FE A RIFEH R 1 AR RASIEIR 2 ATF IR 73
AREIRITEEZ AAANLHFERIZA] -
BEBRERBELRNHAERAR Rental income 15 14
Ha W
FRECERHARAF Rental income 15 14
ikl 6
Directors of the Company:
ARAEE -
Individuals who collectively have joint control Rental expenses 7,151 6,723
over the Company’s ultimate holding company He
and are also executive directors of the Company
SRARESI AR RNREERQRFRER
RRARMITEEZEAAAL
BEAEEYBRARART —T—tFFH 155
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29. Connected and Related Party Disclosures (Continued) 29. BERBEBHALIRZ Z2HE

(%)
(@) Transactions (Continued) (a) X5 (&)
(i) Compensation of key management personnel (i) FEEEAE IR
The remuneration of directors and other members of key EEREMETEEEAER
management during the year was as follows: FAZHMSIT :
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET T
Short-term benefits %2 BAtR 7 8,264 8,344
Post-employment benefits & B BB 12 EF 251 217
8,515 8,561
The remuneration of directors and key executives is EERFETBRABEZME
determined by the remuneration committee having THFMEE L2 E @A
regarded to the performance of individuals and market KERMIGBERETE °

trends.
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29. Connected and Related Party Disclosures (Continued)

(b) Other arrangements

0]

(if)

(iii)

On 5 October 2001, Natural Beauty Taiwan entered into
two separate licensing agreements with a director of the
Company. Under the agreements, the director agreed to
license a number of trademarks to Natural Beauty Taiwan, on
an exclusive basis, for a nominal consideration of NTS$1. The
licensing agreements will be effective till the expiry of the
registration of the respective trademarks, which are in 2015
and 2019

On 10 November 2008, 12 January 2009 and 15 October
2009, Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, Dr. SU Chien-Cheng and Dr. SU Sh-
Hsyu (collectively the “Licensors”) and the Company (the
“Licensee”) entered into a license agreement and subsequent
amendments at a consideration of HK$10 for the royalty-
free, fully paid-up, perpetual and non-revocable licence and
privilege throughout the world to use the certain trade marks
on exclusive use and non-exclusive use basis.

On 10 November 2008 and 12 January 2009, the Company
(the “Licensor”) and Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu (the “Licensee”) entered
into a license agreement and subsequent amendments at a
consideration of HK$10 for a non-exclusive, royalty-free and
perpetual licence (including the right to grant sub-licences)
to use certain trademarks solely in relation to the operation
of resorts and hotels, for education related purposes and in
the field of healthcare and only in the jurisdiction in which
such trademarks are registered or have been applied for.
The Licensee shall offer the Company the opportunity to
participate in any new investments.

e TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE-Z—+tF+-A=1T—HILFE
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29. Connected and Related Party Disclosures (Continued)
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(b)

Other arrangements (Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

On 15 October 2009, Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, Dr. SU Chien-Cheng,
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu and Natural Beauty Magazine Yang Chio
Ling as the assignors and the Company as the assignee
entered into a trade mark assignment pursuant to which the
assignors assigned certain trademarks to the assignee for a
consideration of HK$10.

On 15 October 2009, Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu as the licensor and the
Company as the licensee entered into a licence agreement
pursuant to which the licensor granted to the licensee a
non-exclusive, royalty-free, fully paid-up, perpetual and
irrevocable license and privilege throughout the world to use
certain licensed trademarks only in respect of the businesses
conducted by the licensee for a consideration of HK$10.

On 31 May 2016, Beijing Zhong Ao Yi Natural Beauty
Cosmetics & Hair-Style Training Co Ltd ("Zhong Ao Yi"),
a sole proprietorship of Mr. LEE Ming-Ta, as lessor and
Shanghai Natural Beauty Fuli Cosmetics Company Limited
("Fuli"), a wholly-owned PRC subsidiary of the Company,
as lessee entered into a lease agreement commencing on
1 June 2016 and expiring on 30 April 2017, at a monthly
rental of RMB86,000. Zhong Ao Yi and Fuli entered into a
supplementary agreement on 8 March 2017 to terminate the
lease agreement on 30 April 2017.

On 8 March 2017, Zhong Ao Y, as lessor and Shanghai Yongli
Cosmetics Company Limited, a wholly-owned PRC subsidiary
of the Company, as lessee entered into a lease agreement
commencing on 1 May 2017 and expiring on 30 April 2019,
at a monthly rental of RMB86,000.

On 30 March 2016, Dr. SU Chien-Cheng, as lessor and Natural
Beauty Bio-Technology Company Limited, a wholly-owned
Taiwan subsidiary of the Company, as lessee entered into a
lease agreement commencing on 1 April 2017 and expiring

on 31 December 2018, at a monthly rental of NTD3,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. Statement of Financial Position of the Company

A summary of the statement of financial position of the Company is as

e R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-F L T-A=+ BLEE

30. KATZBBARRBR
AATZHBERRBEBS T -

follows:
2017 2016
—B—tF —ZRF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHExT T
Assets BE
Investments in subsidiaries RIBARZIRE 169,398 169,398
Amounts due from subsidiaries A EENGIE O] 78,805 118,920
Other receivables H b FEIER R 1,743 848
Bank balances and cash RITHEFERIRS 2,533 2402
252,479 291,568
Liabilities BE
Other payables EAbFETERR 1,928 5,042
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERIBTB A RIZIAE 37,972 27,069
39,900 32,111
Net assets BESE 212,579 259457
Capital and reserves A& %
Share capital A% 200,210 200,210
Reserves (Note) A (BdzE) 12,369 59,247
212,579 259457
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERRM T

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-ZT—+tF+-A=+—RHILFE

30. Statement of Financial Position of the Company 30. A&2A R Z M EARRET (&)

31.

160

(Continued)

Note: PR EE -
(Accumulated
Share loss)/
Share option Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
RBE (RIER)
BREE ] RE T st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT THT
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—R"F—H—H 41,016 11,109 (2,632) 49493
Profit and total comprehensive income REEHMNIEAKREEE
for the year - - 200,354 200,354
Dividends recognised as distribution (note 13) #&ERAED IR Z IS (FizF13) = = (190,600)  (190,600)
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RF+-_HA=1+—H 41,016 11,109 7,122 59,247
Profit and total comprehensive income RERE &N REENREEE
for the year - - 113,690 113,690
Dividends recognised as distribution (note 13) #&ERAED R Z IS (FizF13) = = (160,568)  (160,568)
At 31 December 2017 R_ZE—+F+-_A=+—H 41,016 11,109 (39,756) 12,369
Capital Risk Management 31. EXEREE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balances.

The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from the prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, retained earnings and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a semi-
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32. Financial Instruments

(a)

(b)

e TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE-T tHF+-A=1T"BLFE

32. @ IT A

Categories of financial instruments (a) &I AER
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FAT
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables B & EIERR
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BREREMRSEED) 398,008 510,610
Financial liabilities =R
Amortised cost BESHPC AR 28,884 30,729

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash and
trade and other payables. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Interest rate risk
The Group has limited exposure to interest rate risk because
the Group has no interest-bearing financial assets/liabilities
other than bank balances. The future variations in interest
rates will not have a significant impact on the results of the
Group, as the Group's variable-rate bank balances are all
short-term in nature. Therefore, no interest rate sensitivity
analysis is presented.

(b)

BAXEYREERAT

B EREEBEREE
AEEZIESRMTABREREI R
Hip U iR - D HEMRITER
RITEFRREUARBE S R HEE
MER - ZEEMTAZFBER
BEMERE - ZE2RITAZE
A R RORUR % F BB < BUR B
X - BEEBERNEEREEZE
[\ - 3 HEOR K2 S AR RO PR ERE B
HhE ©

5 E b

(i)  FFEEE
AEBAZZHERKRE
R TAAREBE W ERITLE
FUINNETE S BEE 8
& ANAEBAZEF =X
BITHEFHBRIME - &
REMF RS ETSH A
EEEESREATE A
It BEZS A R R E
DHT ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-ZT—+tF+-A=+—RHILFE

32. Financial Instruments (Continued)

162

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk
The Group has bank deposits denominated in foreign
currency which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

The management considers that the Group is not exposed
to significant foreign currency risk as the majority of its
transactions are either denominated in functional currency
of the Group’s subsidiaries or in USS$. Since USS is pegged to
HKS, the foreign currency risk is minimal.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which may cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arisen from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position. In order
to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks and pledged bank deposits with good reputation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

()

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2017, the ten largest trade receivable balances
accounted for approximately 26% (2016: 60%) of the trade
receivables and the largest trade receivables balance was

approximately 7% (2016: 17%) of the Group’s total trade receivables.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical locations
are mainly the PRC, which accounted for 89% (2016: 83%), and
1% (2016: 16%) of the trade
receivables as at 31 December 2017.

Taiwan, which accounted for 1

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group relies on its
operating cash flows as a significant source of liquidity.

The Group's remaining contractual maturity for its trade and other
payables falls within 30 to 90 days as at 31 December 2016 and
2017.

Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

BE-%—

e R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2017
+tE+_RA=+—RHILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERRM T

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+E+-_A=+—HIFE

33. Particulars of Subsidiaries 33. B A RFFE
Details of the Company's subsidiaries at 31 December 2016 and 2017 are RZEBE—RNERZE—tF+=A=+
as follows: —RB - AAFRIMBARGEAT :
Registered capital/
Place of issued and fully Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation paid ordinary issued capital held by the Company
Name of company and operations share capital and its subsidiaries Attributable to the Group Principal activity
iifEx/
ARRLR BRTRMR FATRENEAT
ARER ey EERRA FisERTRATELA KRR IEXR
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
B& 53 B% [ f:3

w07 w6 207 N6 207 N6 2007 N6
ZR-tE CEF ZR-tF DT S8R T F DRt R

Shanghai Natural Beauty Cosmetics  The PRC 15529,980,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Production and sale of skin care
Company Limited* EIARE 299800007 and beauty products
EEBARERERAR FERHEEEREEERR
SAER
Shanghai Natural Beauty Sanlian The PRC RIB3,000,000 - - 100% 100% - = 100% 100%  Wholesale and retal of skin care
Cosmetics Company Limited hEIRRE ARE80000007 and beauty products
HEaRE=BERERAR provision of beaty

treatments and Spa services
HERTEERRFRER
REFRER KBRS

Chengdu Natural Beauty Cosmetics — The PRC RVB2,500000 - - 100% 100% - = 100% 100%  Sale of skin care and beauty products;
Company Limited EIARE ARE25000007 provision of beauty treatments
B EREERERAR and skin care and beauty consulting
and training

HERRRSAER
REEmEIRERE
XRERRB RS

Shanghai Natural Beauty Fuli The PRC 15514800000 - - 100% 100% - = 100% 100%  Production and sale of skin care
Cosmetics Company Limited® ~~ EIARE 14800000 and beauty product,
LRERE=EHaERAT aromatherapeutic products
provision of skin treatment,
beauty and Spa senvice
EERBERERFAERRH
EmRRLER  XAkE

s
Shanghai Yongli Cosmetics The PRC RMB10,000,000 - - 100% - - - 100% - Sale of skin care and beauty products,
Company Limited mEAR ARE10000000 aroma-therapeutic products
EENEIHRERAR HERERAAERRENER
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e R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+F+=-A=+—RHLFE
33. Particulars of Subsidiaries (Continued) 33. B A RIFE (@)
Registered capital/
Place of issued and fully Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation paid ordinary issued capital held by the Company
Name of company and operations share capital and its subsidiaries Attributable to the Group Principal activity
Fidli-U.4
ARELR BRAIRMR FRARENEAE
DRER Bewy EERRE e R TRAmELH AEEER ELE
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
BR B ER £
2017 216 2017 2016 2017 216 2017 216
8-t CTF Rt CTRE ZB-tF TR ZB-tF CTO
Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Taiwan NT$201,000000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Production and sale of skin care
Company Limited aE F18%201.00000070 and beauty products
EERHEERRFAER
Huei Yao Investment Company Taiwan NT$122043420 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% ~ Investment holding
Limied Al Haknmaor L
BRRERNERLA
Ray-Sen Medical Cosmetics Taiwan NT550,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Provision of beauty conslting
Company Limited = F782 500000007 and training
ABEXERROERA REXABRERB R
ERAA
Belem Holdings Scn. Bhd. Malaysia MYR68,609858 100% 100% - = - = - - Investment holding
SREE Class B shares RERRK
MYR10000
(lass A shares
BREREEH
68,609,858
AREREESE
10000
Bilion Synergy Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia MYR2 - = 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Wholesale of skin care and beauty
SRRE ) products
HEEERFAER
Great Glamour Company Limited VI US$50000 100% 100% - - 100% 100% - - Investment holding
AEAARES  S000ET REBR
Next Success Inemational Limited BVl US$100 100% 100% - = 100% 100% - - Investment holding
EB4RRES 100%TC RERK
Fortune Investment Global Limited ~~ BVI 15950000 100% 100% - = 100% 100% - - Investment holding
AEGBREE SO000XTC RAER
Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Hong Kong HK$10000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% ~ Sale of cosmetic products and
(Hong kong) Company Limited &% 100007 provision of beauty treatments

REVHER LIRSS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE

33. Particulars of Subsidiaries (Continued)

34.

166

33. B ARFE (@)

Registered capital/

Place of issued and fully Proportion of nominal value of

incorporation paid ordinary issued capital held by the Company
Name of company and operations share capital and its subsidiaries Attributable to the Group Principal activity

imax/

AMRIR BRTRAR FRAREKEAR

ARER gy EERRE FCRTRAEELA ARER TERH
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
B 53 E% 53
2017 216 2017 216 217 216 217 216
ZB-tE “RF ZE-tE TRF Bt TRF CE-tf TR
Natural Beauty China Holding Limited  Hong Kong HK$200000 100% 100% - = 100% 100% - - Investment holding
BT ERRERAR & 20000570 REER
Shanghai Natural Beauty Bio-Med ~ The PRC 592,600,000 - - 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Company Limited* hEIRRE 2600000 health supplement
LEEREENREARAT! EERHERER
Shanghai Natural Beauty Beauty The PRC RMB6,000000 - - 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%  Beauty consulting; wholesale and
Supplies Company Limited hEIRRE ARE60000007 retail of skin care and beauty
PEEREERRRERATA products
FRERRE  HERTEERR
*AER

Notes: FiEE -
3 The subsidiary is a foreign investment enterprise with limited liability 2 ZHB AR A—HRRBKIHERE

established in the PRC.

*%

The subsidiary is a Chinese-foreign joint venture established in the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities outstanding at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.

Comparative Figures
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with

current year's presentation, which in the opinion of the directors, provides

for better presentation to the consolidated financial statements.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2017

34.

ENERE -

BOE -

ZI B QR A —ERRBEKZE TS

RERIFAEMER - SEEAHE
RABBTEAHAERZEBES

bR T
EFHBRBTEEN S FARKFER
IR - BEERAHLEE2RE
ARBERE -



Financial Summary

LR T

Results ¥E
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
T —EF-DNF —T-hF —FTF ZB-tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$’000
FABT FET FET FAET FHExT
REVENUE A 439421 505,761 506,913 475225 399,579
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BREL AR 83,052 116,274 170,392 196,217 146,738
INCOME TAX EXPENSE P8R (24,593) (44,794) (33,562) (47,814) (41,350)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERR 58459 71,480 136,830 148,403 105,388
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO: BUF A L HEARSER
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY ARABEE A 58,269 71,480 136,330 148,403 105,388
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS ~ FE3EpRigEs 190 = = = -
58,459 71,480 136,830 148,403 105,388
BAZEYRBARAT —E—+EEHR 167



e : = 7 .
Financial Summary
B AR
Assets and Liabilities BEERBE
At 31 December
n+=—B=+—H
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
T —Z-DNF —T-hF —TF ZB-tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAT FAET FET FAET FET
TOTAL ASSETS HWEE 982,067 977,730 888,597 822,186 777,885
TOTAL LIABILITIES mes (193,809) (203,824) (155,969) (167,513)  (127,139)
788,258 773,906 732,628 654,673 650,746
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY KATHEEAEEES 788,258 773,906 732,628 654,673 650,746
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